
 
 
 
  Contact: Alan Maher 

  Tel: 01246 217391 

  Email: alan.maher@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk  

  Date: Monday, 12 December 2022 

 
 
To: Members of the Planning Committee 
 
Please attend a meeting of the Planning Committee to be held on Tuesday, 20 December 
2022 at 1.00 pm in the Council Chamber, District Council Offices, 2013 Mill Lane, 
Wingerworth, Chesterfield S42 6NG. 
 
The meeting will also be live streamed from the Council’s website on its You Tube 
Channel. Click on the following link if you want to view the meeting: 
 
North East Derbyshire District Council - YouTube 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer  
 

Members of the Committee 
 
Councillor William Armitage  Councillor Maggie Jones 
Councillor Andrew Cooper Councillor Heather Liggett 
Councillor Peter Elliott Councillor Alan Powell 
Councillor Mark Foster Councillor Jacqueline Ridgway 
Councillor Roger Hall Councillor Kathy Rouse 
Councillor David Hancock Councillor Diana Ruff - Chair 
Councillor Lee Hartshorne 
 
Please notify the Interim Governance Manager, Alan Maher by 4.00 pm on Friday 16 
December 2022 of any substitutions made for the meeting. 
 
For further information about this meeting please contact: Alan Maher 01246 217391 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:alan.maher@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCAtAqurAPSDhWR0zf_M6XGg?view_as=subscriber


 

A G E N D A 
 

1   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions   
 

 To receive any apologies for absence and notices of substitutions from Members.  
 

2   Declarations of Interest   
 

 Members are requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable 
pecuniary interests and/or other interests, not already on their register of 
interests, in any item on the agenda and withdraw from the meeting at the 
appropriate time.  
 

3   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 4 - 10) 
 

 To approve as a correct record and the Chair to sign the Minutes of Planning 
Committee held on 22 November 2022.       
 

4   NED/21/01376/OL - SHIRLAND  (Pages 11 - 35) 
 

 Application to vary conditions 4 (Approved Plans), 16 (Temporary Access) and 17 
(Highway Improvement Works) of planning approval 19/00335/OL, to provide a 
revised site access (Major Development) at land to the South of Hallfieldgate 
Lane, Shirland.  
 
(Planning Manager – Development Management) 
 

5   NED/22/00884/RM - STRETTON  (Pages 36 - 51) 
 

 Section 73 Approved Plans Application to vary condition 1 (Approved Plans) of 
planning approval 18/00812/RM to vary the layout and landscaping details (Major 
Development) at land to the East of Prospect House, Highstairs Lane, Stretton 
 
(Planning Manager – Development Management) 
 

6   NED/22/00885/RM - STRETTON  (Pages 52 - 64) 
 

 Section 73 Approved Plan Application to vary condition 1 (Approved Plans) of 
planning approval 17/00768/RM to vary the scale and appearance details (Major 
Development). Land to the East of Prospect House, Highstairs Lane, Stretton 
 
(Planning Manager – Development Management) 
 

7   NED/21/1159/FLH - DRONFIELD  (Pages 65 - 76) 
 

 Proposed second storey extension to create rooms in roof space and two storey 
extension to front (revised scheme of 21/00774/FLH) (Amended Plans) at 20 
Bents Crescent, Dronfield.  
 
(Planning Manager – Development Management) 
 

Page 2



 

8   Late Representations - Summary Update Report - NOW PUBLISHED  (Pages 
77 - 110) 
 

 (Planning Manager – Development Management) 
 

9   Planning Appeals - Lodged and Determined  (Pages 111 - 113) 
 

 (Planning Manager – Development Management) 
 

10   Matters of Urgency   
 

 To consider any other matter which the Chair is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. 
 

___________ 
 

 
 

 

Access for All statement 
 

You can request this document or information in another format such as 

large print or language or contact us by: 

 
 Phone - 01246 231111 

 Email - connectne@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk 

 Text - 07800 00 24 25 

 BSL Video Call – a three way video call with us and a BSL interpreter. It is free 

to call North East Derbyshire District Council with Sign Solutions or call into 

the offices at Wingerworth.  

 Call with Relay UK via textphone or app on 0800 500 888– a free phone service  

 Visiting our offices at Wingerworth – 2013 Mill lane, S42 6NG 

 

Page 3

tel:01246%20231111
mailto:connectne@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk
tel:07800002425
https://www.interpreterslive.co.uk/app/nederbyshire-district-council/
https://www.interpreterslive.co.uk/app/nederbyshire-district-council/
https://www.relayuk.bt.com/
tel:0800%20500%20888
https://www.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/contact-us
https://www.google.com/maps/place/Mill+Ln,+Wingerworth,+Chesterfield+S42+6NG/@53.2019405,-1.4175369,16z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x48799002a176648d:0x964bfc12639f0777!8m2!3d53.1998519!4d-1.4139856


 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 22 NOVEMBER 2022 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Diana Ruff (Chair) (in the Chair) 
Councillor Alan Powell (Vice-Chair) 

 
Councillor William Armitage Councillor Andrew Cooper 
Councillor Peter Elliott Councillor Lee Hartshorne 
Councillor Kathy Rouse Councillor Pam Windley 
 
Also Present: 
 
R Purcell Assistant Director of Planning 
A Kirkham Planning Manager - Development Management 
C Wilson Senior Planning Officer 
L Ingram Legal Team Manager - Contentious Team 
T Scott Governance and Scrutiny Officer 
A Maher Interim Governance Manager 
 
PLA/
49/2
2-23 

Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor D Hancock, who was 
substituted by Councillor P Windley.  Apologies for absence were also received 
from Councillor M Foster, R Hall and M Jones.  
 

PLA/
50/2
2-23 

Declarations of Interest 
 
None.   
 

PLA/
51/2
2-23 

Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 18 October 2022 were approved as 
a true record.   
 

PLA/
52/2
2-23 

NED/22/00349/FL - APPERKNOWLE 
 
The report to Committee explained that an Application had been submitted for the 
change of use of a Brownfield Site into Housing Land and for the construction of a 
five bedroom house, with an attached garage, at 37 High Street, Apperknowle. 
The Application involved amended plans. It had been referred to Committee by 
the local Ward Councillor, A Dale, who had raised issues about it. Members were 
informed that as the site was owned by the Council, it was appropriate for 
Planning Committee to determine the Application.  
 
Planning Committee was recommended to approve the Application, subject to 
conditions. The report to Committee explained the reasons for this.  
 
Officers contended that the building would be appropriate in scale, design and 
location to the character and function of the local settlement. They felt that, 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



 

 

subject to appropriate conditions, it would not cause unacceptable harm to the 
level of amenity currently enjoyed by the occupiers of adjacent properties. 
Officers concluded, therefore, that the proposal would be an acceptable form of 
development and that there were no technical reasons why the Application should 
be rejected. 
 
Before the Committee discussed the Application it heard from G Flavell, the 
Agent for the Application, and V Jones, who spoke against the Application.  
 
Planning Committee considered the Application. It took into account the 
relevant Planning Issues. In particular, the Principle of Development and the 
site’s location as an Unallocated Site within the defined Settlement 
Development Limits (SDL) for Apperknowle. It considered National and Local 
Planning Policy, including Local Plan Policy SS7, which permits development 
on those sites within Settlement Development Limits that have not been 
allocated within the Local Plan or a Neighbourhood Plan. Committee also took 
into account Local Plan Policy SDC2, and its requirement for replacement 
trees to be planted, when possible, for those removed as a result of a 
development. 
 
Members discussed the Application. They reflected on the amendments which 
had been made to the scale of the proposed development. Members heard 
how the building would now be significantly lower in overall height than 
originally proposed. They reflected on the officer assessment of how, 
following the changes to size, the proposed building would be a typically 
proportioned two-storey dwelling, consistent with the scale, proportions of 
other properties close to the site.  
 
Members discussed the impact which the development might have on 
neighbouring properties and the concerns raised about the possible loss of 
privacy. Some Members sought clarification on vehicle access to the site and 
whether this would be adequate. Committee was reminded that the Highway 
Authority had not objected to the proposed development, subject to 
clarification about the garage size and bin storage areas. 
 
Committee Members discussed the removal of certain trees as part of the 
development. Specific attention was paid to Sycamore trees close to the lane 
leading from the site to the road. Members heard the reasons why, given their 
location at the edge of the development, and their lack of amenity to the local 
area, a Tree Preservation Order should not be imposed on them. They also 
heard that because of their proximity to the development site, they would be 
unlikely to survive during the building works. Some Members felt that they 
should be retained and protected as far as possible during the construction 
and that this requirement be reflected in any conditions. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion Councillor P Elliot and Councillor W 
Armitage moved and seconded a Motion to approve officer recommendations, 
subject to a provision within Condition 8 that the specified trees be retained 
and measures to protect them as far as possible during construction. 
 
The Motion was put to the vote and was approved. 
 

Page 5



 

 

RESOLVED -   
 
(1) That the Application be approved, in line with officer recommendations, 

subject to the inclusion within Condition 8 of a provision that the trees 
specified at the meeting be retained and protected as far as possible 
during the construction work. 

 
(2) That the final wording and content of the conditions be delegated to the 

Planning Manager (Development Management). 
 
Conditions 

 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be started within 3 years from the 

date of this permission.  
 

2 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with 
the details shown on the Location and Site Plan and drawings numbered 
2693/19 B (Amended Floor Plans) and 2693/21 B (Amended Elevations) 
uploaded to the Council’s website on 15.08.2022, and drawings numbered 
2693/20 Rev C (Site Plan and Section as Proposed), 2693/22 Rev B 
(Proposed Elevations), 2693/23 Rev B (Cross Sectional Gable Elevation), 
which were uploaded to the Council’s website on 24.08.2022, unless 
otherwise subsequently agreed through a formal submission under the 
Non Material Amendment procedures and unless otherwise required by 
any condition contained in this decision notice. 
 

3 Before above ground works start, a plan to show the positions, design, 
materials, height and type of boundary treatments to be erected shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved scheme shall be completed before the occupation of the dwelling 
hereby approved and shall be retained as approved thereafter.  
 

4 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the proposed 
finished floor levels of the dwelling and the proposed finished ground levels 
of the site set out on the approved elevational and cross section drawings 
listed in condition 2 above.  

 
5 Before above ground works start, precise specifications or samples of the 

walling and roofing materials to be used shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
then be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 

6 Before the occupation the dwelling hereby approved, the window at the 
principal (south-west facing) elevation of the property, which serves the 
room identified as ‘bedroom 4’ on the approved floor plans, shall be fitted 
with obscure glazing. The obscure glazing shall be of an obscurity 
equivalent to at least Level 3 of the Pilkington obscure glazing range. The 
window shall be of a non-opening design or alternatively any opening parts 
must be more than 1.7m above the floor level of the room in which the 
window is installed. The window shall then be retained as such thereafter 
at all times. 
 

Page 6



 

 

7 Notwithstanding the submitted details, the first floor windows on the north-
west and south-east facing side elevations of the dwelling hereby approved 
shall be fitted with obscure glazing. The obscure glazing shall be of an 
obscurity equivalent to at least Level 3 of the Pilkington obscure glazing 
range. The windows shall be of a non-opening design or alternatively any 
opening parts must be more than 1.7m above the floor level of the room in 
which the window is installed. 
 

8 Before commencement of above ground works, the following shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 

 a) a scheme of landscaping, which shall include indications of all existing 
trees and hedgerows on the land,  

 b) the details of any trees and hedgerows to be retained, together with 
measures for their protection during development.  

     c) a schedule of proposed plant species, size and density and planting 
locations and   

     d) an implementation programme  

9 All planting, seeding or turfing in the approved scheme of landscaping shall 
be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development, 
whichever is the sooner.  Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting 
season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning 
Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

 
10 Notwithstanding any submitted details, before development commences, a 

detailed plan showing the positions, species and crown spread of trees to 
be retained within the application site, together with details of measures for 
their protection for the duration of the works shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include 
measures for the protection of the two Sycamore Trees earmarked for 
removal on the approved Site Plan (2693/20 Rev C). The means of 
protection shall be installed in accordance with the approved scheme 
before any other works commence on site and retained in position until all 
the building works hereby approved have been completed. If any trees, 
which are the subject of the protection measures, die, are removed or 
become seriously damaged or diseased, they shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with replacement trees in accordance with a scheme of 
replacement trees to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 
11 Before any other operations are commenced, a construction method 

statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The agreed plan/statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The construction method statement 
shall provide information about plant and materials, site accommodation, 

Page 7



 

 

loading, unloading and manoeuvring of goods vehicles, parking and 
manoeuvring of employees and visitors vehicles during the construction 
period.  

  
12 Before development starts, a scheme for the provision of surface water 

drainage works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented in full 
before the development is brought into use, and shall be retained as such 
thereafter. 

   
13 Before development starts, a scheme for the provision of foul drainage 

works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented in full before the 
development is brought into use and shall be retained as such thereafter. 

 
Reasons for Conditions 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be started within 3 years from the 

date of this permission. 
 
2 For clarity and the avoidance of doubt. 
 
3 In the interests of visual and neighbouring amenity.  
 
4 In the interests of visual and neighbouring amenity. 
 
5 In the interests of the character and appearance of the area.  
 
6 In the interests of preserving the amenity levels currently enjoyed by the 

occupiers of neighbouring properties fronting High Street, which are 
positioned at a lower elevation than the proposed property subject of this 
application. 

 
7 In the interests of preserving the amenity levels currently enjoyed by the 

occupiers of neighbouring properties.  
 
8 In the interests of the character and appearance of the area. 
 
9 In the interests of the character and appearance of the area. 

 
10 In the interests of the protection and integration of existing trees of value, 

in accordance with Policy SDC2 of the North East Derbyshire Local Plan 
 

11 In the interests of highway safety during the construction phase. 
 

12 In the interests of satisfactory drainage from the site. 
 

13 In the interests of satisfactory drainage from the site. 
 

PLA/
53/2
2-23 

Planning Appeals - Lodged and Determined 
 
The report to Committee explained that two appeals had been lodged, two had 

Page 8



 

 

been dismissed and two appeals had been allowed.    
 

PLA/
54/2
2-23 

Matters of Urgency (Public) 
 
None.   
 

PLA/
55/2
2-23 

Exclusion of Public 
 
RESOLVED -  
 
That the public be excluded from the meeting during the discussion of the 
following item of business to avoid the disclosure to them of exempt information 
as defined in Paragraphs 2, 3 and 5, Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972”.  (As amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information)(Variation) Order 2008). 
 

PLA/
56/2
2-23 

Planning Enforcement Service Progress Report 
 
The report to Committee summarised the work of the Council’s Planning 
Enforcement Service. The report set out information relating to the work carried 
out by the Planning Enforcement service during the first six months of the 2022-
23 financial year and showed how this compared to the previous period. 
 
Committee discussed the report and the action taken on specific enforcement 
issues. During their discussion, Members reiterated their support for the work of 
the Planning Enforcement Service and congratulated the officers for the good 
progress which they had made.  
 
RESOLVED -  
 
That the report and workload information on the Planning Enforcement Service be 
noted. 
 
By Acclamation  
 

PLA/
57/2
2-23 

Section 106 (Legal) Agreements Update 
 
The report to Committee provided information on specific ‘Section 106’ 
Agreements, or agreements reached between the Council as Planning Authority 
with developers to carry out specific work to help offset the impact of new 
developments on local people.  
 
Members were informed of those agreements where the funding had now been 
secured. It also included information about Section 106 agreements where the 
funding had not yet been received or written-off. 
 
RESOLVED -   
 
(1) That the information contained within Appendices A, B and C of the report 

 be noted. 
 
(2) That the contents of paragraph 2.1 of the report be noted and endorsed. 

Page 9



 

 

 
(3) That information on Section 106 Agreements continues to be reported to 

 Planning Committee.  
 

    By Acclamation 
 
 

PLA/
58/2
2-23 

Planning Appeal, Killamarsh 
 
Members were reminded that an appeal has been lodged against the refusal of 
planning permission for 397 dwellings at land west of Upperthorpe Road, 
Killamarsh (application NED/18/01003). The report to Committee explained 
that follow-on legal advice had been received, which Members were asked to 
consider. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion Councillor D Ruff and W Armitage moved 
and seconded a Motion that the Council cease to pursue its grounds for 
refusal to the Appeal, in order to minimise the costs to the Council.  
  
The Motion was put to the vote and was agreed. 
 
RESOLVED -  
 

(1) That the Council cease to pursue its grounds for objection to the 
Appeal, in order to minimise the costs to the Planning Authority 

 
PLA/
59/2
2-23 

Matters of Urgency (Private) 
 
None.  
 

Page 10



 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20 December  

 
 
REFERENCE NUMBER: 21/01376OL Application Expiry Date: 22 December 2022 
Application Type: Full Planning Permission 

 
Proposal Description: Application to vary conditions 4 (Approved Plans), 16 (Temporary 

Access) and 17 (Highway Improvement Works) of planning approval 
19/00335/OL to provide a revised site access (Major Development) 

At: 
 

Land To The South Of Hallfieldgate Lane, Shirland 

For: Trustees Of Ted Speed And Pauline Speed Hallfield Trust 
Third Party Reps: 6 Parish: Shirland and Higham Parish Council 
  Ward Name: Shirland Ward 
 
Author of Report: Case Officer Phil Slater Date of Report: 02 December 2022 
 

MAIN RECOMMENDATION:           GRANT  (subject to section 106 
Agreement) 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



1.0 Reason for Report 
 
1.1 Councillor Liggett has called in the application for determination by 

planning committee due to the visibility of the site from various public 
viewpoints and concerns in relation to the proximity to the already 
overloaded access/entrance to Lilac Way and to the new Wheeldons 
development which is not mentioned in this application.  
 

1.2 The Planning Committee is required to determine the application.  
 
2.0 Proposal and Background 
 
2.1 The site is situated to the south of Hallfieldgate Lane, on the south 

western edge of Shirland, and lies outside of the defined settlement 
development limit (SDL) and within land designated as open countryside. 
To the west of the site lies the Hallfield Gate Conservation Area. 

 
2.2 The northern side of the site directly bounds Hallfieldgate Lane before 

following the rear boundaries of houses fronting onto the road along its 
north-eastern edge. To the east of the site is Pit Lane, to the south-east is 
Shirland Golf Course and to the south-west are fields. The west of the site 
is bounded by a barn and agricultural buildings associated with 
Hallfieldgate Farm, now partially converted to residential and office use. 

 
2.3 The site comprises approximately 4.5 hectares of pasture covering four 

fields divided by hedgerows and tree lines. These are located across a 
generally south-facing slope the ground level also falls towards either side 
of a north-south aligned drainage ditch. There is a row of mature trees 
fronting Halllfield Gate Lane which are protected by Tree Preservation 
Orders. 

 
2.4 The site benefits from an extant outline permission for up to 90 dwellings 

with details of the access not reserved for subsequent approval which was 
allowed on appeal on 22nd January 2021.  

 
 Proposals 
 
2.4 This application is a section 73 application to vary planning conditions 4, 

16 and 17 of application 19/00335/OL in order to provide a revised site 
access for the approved residential development on land south of 
Hallfieldgate Lane.   

 
2.5 The revised site access is located towards the north eastern corner of the 

western field within the application site, as shown on the Drawing No. 
07/1657/101 Rev. G Illustrative Masterplan. (see fig 1 below) 

 
 

Page 12



 
Figure 1: Illustrative masterplan  
 
2.6 The application is accompanied by a Transport Assessment and details of 

the proposed site access are shown on Drawing No. JD119 – Figure 3.1C 
Access Option 2. (see figure 2 below) 

 
2.7 The proposed site access, along with the western visibility splay and the 

majority of the eastern visibility would be delivered within the site on land 
under the Applicant’s control and highway land. Part of the eastern visibility 
splay extends outside the application site across the north west corner of 
the garden for No. 43 Hallfieldgate Lane. In addition, the proposed site 
access would not require the removal of any trees covered by the Tree 
Preservation Order along the north side of the western field adjacent to 
Hallfieldgate Lane, Shirland. 

 

Page 13



 
Figure 2: originally submitted  new site access.  
 
 Amendments 
 
2.8 The agent has submitted amended plans which includes an extension to 

the proposed eastern footway to tie-in with the existing footpath to the east 
on the south side of Hallfieldgate Lane, Shirland. (see fig 3 below).  

 
2.9 Additional plans have also been submitted which include plan and section 

detail for the proposed site access, including the existing and proposed 
change in levels between Hallfieldgate Lane and land to the south.  

 
 Drawing No: 0703 Rev. P01 – Proposed Footway Improvement across 

frontage of Plot 43; and 
 Drawing No: 0705 Rev. P02 – Cross Sections and Long Section New 

Proposed Road.  
 Drawing No: 0720 Rev. P01 – Modified Site Access Visibility Splays  
  
2.10 The proposed site access along part of its eastern side includes an 

indicative retaining wall which can be screened with landscape planting, 
where appropriate, and a minor realignment notably towards its southern 
end in order to maintain an appropriate stand-off from some trees along 
the field boundary along the western curtilage of No. 43. In addition, an 
indicative low level retaining wall is proposed to the south side of part of 
the new length of footway to the south of Hallfieldgate Lane and within the 
northern curtilage of No. 43.   

 
 

Page 14



 
Figure 3:  indicative cross section of the access road.   
 
2.11 A third drawing shows the proposed site access visibility splays of 2.4m x 

47m to the west and 2.4m x 54m to the east remain consistent with the 
details previously referred to in the Transport Assessment (see Fig 4 
below).  

 

 
Figure 4: revised access details (0720-P03) 
 
2.12 The agent has also submitted a separate full planning application, 

NED/22/00185/FL refers (see Fig 5 below), for a footway extension to the 
north side of this property (“No. 43 application”) which includes part of the 
garden, with boundary hedgerow, and some adjoining land within the 
public highway (primarily a grass verge). 

 
2.13 Any planning permissions which may be granted for the No. 43 application 

and Section 73 application would be mutually compatible and enable the 
delivery of the revised site access for the proposed approved development 
and “mirror” conditions could be imposed on both decisions which require 
the revised site access to be installed in accordance with the approved 
details.   

 

Page 15



 
Figure 5: application plan for NED/22/0185/FL 
 
 
3.0  Relevant Planning History 
 
3.1 NED/19/00335/OL - Outline planning application for up to 90 dwellings and 

site access with all other matters reserved (apart from access) (Major 
development/Departure from Development Plan/Affecting Setting of 
Conservation Area). Application refused but subsequently allowed on 
appeal.   

 
3.2 NED/22/00185/FL - Proposed footway extension to the north side of 

Hallfieldgate Lane, Shirland for Friar 2019 Ltd.  Under consideration.   
 
4.0 Consultation Responses 
 
4.1 Councillor Liggett has called in the application for determination by 

planning committee due to the visibility of the site from various public 
viewpoints and concerns in relation to the proximity to the already 
overloaded access/entrance to Lilac Way and to the new Wheeldons 
development which is not mentioned in this application. 

 
4.2 The Parish Council are concerned about the traffic, parking and visibility 

on Hallfieldgate Lane. The lane forms part of a bus route and the Parish 
Council are keen to know where the bus stop will be relocated to. The 

Page 16



Council would also like to know what alternative provision is to be made for 
the cars that currently park in this area. 

 
4.3 The Highway Authority have commented that the amended plan 

addresses highway comments dated 16th December 2021. Accordingly, 
there are no highway objections to the proposed variation of conditions 4, 
16 and 17 to planning approval 19/00335/OL. 

 
4.4 The HA have been consulted on the additional section drawings and have 

commented that they have no objection to the variation of conditions.  
Regarding the previous legal agreement, the revised access location  
should negate the need for extending of the opposite parking spaces and 
bus stop relocation.  

 
4.5 Force Designing Out Crime Officer has commented that the application 

seeks to vary plans in connection with site access only, for which there are 
no objections or comments to make.  

 
4.6 Chesterfield Royal Hospital seek s106 contributions of £191,362 towards 

cost pressures.   
 
4.7 The Coal Authority recommends that the LPA consider imposing a 

condition on any reissued consent to reflect the recommendation in the 
consultation response to the planning application and the content included 
in Section 52 of the Appeal Decision.  

 
4.8 Environmental Health Officers have confirmed that they have no 

comments to make.  
 
4.9 Derbyshire Wildlife Trust have commented that the new location of the 

access would not require any removal of trees and there are no objections 
to the proposals.   

 
4.10 The Lead Local Flood Authority has commented that the LLFA did not 

set the conditions to be varied and the proposed changes will not require 
the alteration of any of those conditions on the appeal decision.   

 
4.11 NEDDC Parks Officers have commented on the Illustrative Masterplan 

and that  the proposed revised site access will have the effect of altering 
some of the open space land, by creating a strip of open space land to the 
west side of the first few properties as you enter the site. 

 
 Parks understand that the site is subject to a Unilateral Undertaking, not a 

S106 agreement, and it is my understanding the public open space would 
be maintained by a Management Company, and is not proposed to be 
adopted by the District Council. However, I would suggest that the 
developer doesn’t position a new tree on the open space as indicated on 
the Illustrative Masterplan between the west boundary of the site and the 

Page 17



north-westernmost property, as it would seem to unsuitably close to the 
corner of the proposed dwelling. 

 
5.0 Representations 
 
5.1 Objections have been received from 6 local residents which have raised 

the following issues (in summary).  
  
 Highway impact  

 The transport assessment is based on information dating back to 2011. 
The assessment does not take into account the planned increase in car 
journeys resulting from the development taking place to the North of 
Hallfieldgate or the planned developments on Park Lane to the east of 
the village.  

 Two bus-stops are within the restricted area. Buses completely block 
all traffic four times each day. 

 The location of the development is currently considered to be semi-
rural. Why does the report not consider the agricultural traffic along the 
lane? 

 The position of the new access road into the proposed development is 
in a much worse position than previously proposed. The new access 
road emerges much closer to the junction with Lilac Way on the North 
side of Hallfieldgate Lane 

 This planning application adds 489 extra journeys each day onto an 
already hazardous route.  (officer note: the application does not 
increase the numbers of dwelling already approved on appeal) 

 safe access for all users cannot be provided due to the existing traffic 
conditions on Hallfieldgate Lane and B6013 

 The transport assessment uses out-of-date information, completely 
ignores the impact of current development projects, predicts an 
increase in traffic based on inaccurate information and shows zero 
knowledge of the local conditions and hazards. The assessment 
completely ignores the fact that Hallfieldgate Lane is restricted to a 
single vehicle width along a significant length. Traffic flow is already 
restricted and visibility is poor along this section. The lane is completely 
blocked several times each day and therefore has zero traffic flow at 
these times. 

 Easternmost mature tree has recently been removed complete. This 
tree would have completely blocked vision eastwards. There was no 
evidence of disease to the trunk or limbs on removal. 

 A clear line of sight westwards is not possible from the proposed 
variation location due to the line of established and presumably 
protected trees. 

 There is no existing access to the Golf course and consequently Pit 
Lane from the Field to the South of Hallfieldgate Lane. 

 Important information contained within application form regarding 
visibility is incorrect, (officer note – revised plans have been submitted 
which demonstrate achievable visibility splays)  

Page 18



 Sections illustrating the levels across the proposed site entrance are 
vital in making such an important decision on road access in such a 
dangerous location. Both East to West and North to South. (officer 
note:  sections have been submitted).   

 The existing access road to Hallfield Farm will still exist, therefore 
creating even further problems as there will be two vehicular accesses 
emerging on to the lane at a dangerous point. 

  It is critical that a new and comprehensive traffic survey is carried out 
before this application is determined. 

 There have been several substantial changes to traffic volumes since 
the previous survey, carried out a number of years ago. 
 
Matters relating to layout 

 the layout of the road and driveways behind Number 19, 17, and 15 in 
terms of security and the previously circulated illustration of a much 
larger development linking up to a proposed new road to a new solar 
farm 

 Loss of amenities has not satisfactorily been covered 
 
Other matters 

 Concerns raised around Severn Trent pumping works  

 new revised site access (Major Development) is a totally change to the 
plans submitted 

 The proposed amendments are too significant to warrant being treated 
as a variation 
 

6.0 Relevant Policy and Strategic Context 

Page 19



6.1 The North East Derbyshire District Local Plan (2014-2034)  
  
 SS1 Sustainable Development 
 SS2 Spatial Strategy and the Distribution of Development 
 SS9 Development in the Countryside  
 LC 2 Affordable Housing 
 LC4 Type and Mix of Housing 
 SDC4 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
 SDC11 Flood Risk and Drainage 
 SDC12 High Quality Design and Place Making 
 SDC13 Environmental Quality 
 SDC14 Land potentially affected by Contamination or Instability 
  ID3 Sustainable Travel 
 ID10 Open Space, Sports and Recreation facilities  
 
 National Planning Policy Framework 
 
 The overarching aims of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

are also material in the assessment of this application and have been 
taken into account 

 
 Other  
 
 Successful Places:  A guide to Sustainable Housing Layout and Design 
 
7.0 Planning Issues  

 
7.1 This application seeks to vary planning conditions 4, 16 and 17 of planning 

approval NED/19/00335 in order to provide a revised site access for the 
proposed residential development.   

 
7.2 The revised site access is located towards the north eastern corner of the 

western field within the application site, as shown edged red on the 
Location Plan, and as shown on drawing 0720–P04. The application is 
also accompanied by a Transport Assessment.  The proposed site 
access, along with the western visibility splay and the majority of the 
eastern visibility would be delivered within the application site on land 
under the Applicant’s control and highway land. Part of the eastern 
visibility splay extends outside the application site across the north west 
corner of the garden for No. 43 Hallfieldgate Lane.  A separate planning 
application for a new footway and visibility splay has been submitted.   

 
 Section 73 Application 
 
7.3 This application seeks a minor material amendment to the approved plans 

condition of the approved application under section 73 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990.  A Section 73 application cannot be used to 
change the description of the development.  There is no statutory 
definition of ‘minor material amendment’ but it can include any amendment 

Page 20



where its scale and/or nature results in a development which is not 
substantially different from the one which has been approved 

 
7.4 Comments have been received from residents regarding the changes 

requiring a new application for the whole development.  On this issue the 
agent has submitted a Counsel opinion, and in response the planning 
Authority have also sought an independent legal opinion from Counsel.   

 
 Legal Opinion (Precis) 
 
7.5 The original site access arrangement included a wider footpath to the 

eastern ‘curve’ of the bell mouth and the provision of tactile paving 
indicating a crossing point over Hallfieldgate Lane to the footpath on the 
northern side of the road. A similar arrangement is proposed in relation to 
the amended scheme. A separate application has been submitted for 
works to create a new footpath heading eastwards from the bell mouth 
along the south side of the road.  

 
7.6 The revised access arrangement (i.e. not the new footpath) works all fall 

within the original red line for the permission (except for part of the eastern 
visibility splay which now cut across land owned by No 43). The proposed 
footpath works (including the creation of a new footpath along the 
southern side of the road using land owned by No 43) along with the 
remainder of the visibility splay fall within the separate application (Ref: 
NED/22/00185/FL). 

 
7.7 Reference to the original planning application (Ref: NED/19/00335/OL) 

show that there was to be no new footpath created to the east of the site 
access but simply that tactile paving was to be installed, with the intention 
being that pedestrians simply cross the road and use the existing footpath 
which runs along the north side of it. The proposed scheme will allow for 
the existing footpath along the south side of Hallfieldgate Lane to connect 
into the Site without the need to cross the road. It does not appear to be 
the case that it was considered necessary for the development of the Site 
to be considered acceptable that such a link be provided.  

 
7.8 A s73 application is an application “for planning permission for the 

development of land without complying with conditions subject to which a 
previous permission was granted” (s73(1)). When considering a s73 
application the Local Planning Authority (LPA) “shall only consider the 
question of the conditions subject to which planning permission should be 
granted” (s73(2)). Upon such an application the LPA may grant planning 
permission subject to conditions “differing from those subject to which the 
previous permission was granted” or grant permission unconditionally 
(s73(2)(a). 

 
7.9 Firstly, s73 cannot be used to amend the description of development 

(described also as the ‘operative’ part of the permission). Secondly, in 
accepting an application to vary or remove conditions the LPA may not 

Page 21



approve conditions which are inconsistent with the description of the 
development.  

 
7.10 In the present case, the description of development permitted is for the 90 

residential units and “…site access”. It is the conditions imposed upon the 
original permission which define where and how the site access will be 
delivered. An alteration to the site access condition(s) would not be 
inconsistent which the description (the ‘operative’ part of the permission). 

 
7.11 Whilst the Planning Practice Guidance introduced the term ‘minor material 

amendment”, there is nothing in the section 73 itself which limits it to what 
are called "minor amendments”.  The decision-maker is required to look at 
the permission as a whole to ascertain whether the proposed change is 
‘fundamental’ or seeks to change some specific part of the permission as 
granted. 

 
7.12 The question is therefore whether or not moving the site access (the 

location and design of which is not specified in the operative part of the 
grant – the description) is so different that it could be categorised as a 
fundamental variation of the effect of the permission overall. It must be 
borne in mind that the effect of the permission overall, as granted, is for 
the erection of up to 90 dwellings and the provision of a site access. 

 
7.13 On this issue, and weighing all the advice that has been submitted and 

received, Officers are of the view that the relocation of the site access is 
not a fundamental variation of the overall permission for 90 dwellings that 
was allowed on appeal and that the application can properly be 
determined as a s73 application. Detailed discussion of the application’s 
merits follows below.  

 
 Principle of Development 

 
7.14 The site benefits from an extant outline planning permission for up to 90 

dwellings granted on appeal.  The application site is a Greenfield site 
located outside of, although adjacent to, the settlement development limits 
for Shirland as identified in the Local Plan. Shirland is a level 2 settlement 
within the settlement hierarchy and considered to have a good level of 
sustainability.  The development of the site would, therefore, conflict with 
the general policies of restraint in countryside areas as set out in the 
adopted Local Plan (policy SS9 specifically refers).     

 
7.15 However, this is an application for a minor material amendment that does 

not seek to change the description of the development. As the planning 
permission granted on appeal remains extant, the principle of the 
development is therefore acceptable and the only issues needing 
consideration here are those impacts by the proposed changes and these 
relate to the access alone.    

 
 Highway issues 

Page 22



 
7.16  The original approved site access arrangement (see Fig 6 below) 

proposed a single priority junction onto Hallfieldgate Lane, utilising an 
existing private driveway, which is currently used for access to the offices 
referred to above. It included a wider footpath to the eastern ‘curve’ of the 
bell mouth and the provision of tactile paving indicating a crossing point 
over Hallfieldgate Lane to the footpath on the northern side of the road. 

 

 
 Figure 6: Approved site access 
 
 
7.17 This application proposes a similar arrangement with the access located 

further to the east adjacent to no. 43 Hallfieldgate Lane (Fig 7 below) A 
separate application has been submitted for works to create a new 
footpath heading eastwards from the bell mouth along the southern side of 
the road. The revised access arrangement (i.e. not the new footpath) 
works all fall within the original red line for the permission (except for part 
of the eastern visibility splay which would now cut across land owned by 
No 43). The proposed footpath works along with the remainder of the 
visibility splay fall with the separate application (Ref: 22/00185/FL) 

 

 
Figure 7: Proposed access and new footpath 
 

Page 23



7.18  The Highway Authority (HA) has been consulted on the revised access 
arrangements and have confirmed that they have no objections to the 
proposals from a highway safety perspective.  The HA have also 
confirmed that the revised access location should negate the need for 
extending the opposite parking spaces and the bus stop relocation which 
formed part of the approved legal agreement.  This would address the 
Parish Council concerns regarding the parking spaces and bus stop.   

 
7.19 Following concerns raised regarding the change in levels at the point of 

the new access, the agent has submitted levels and cross sections of the 
new access and the new footway. The drawings include plans and section 
detail for the proposed site access, including the existing and proposed 
change in levels between Hallfieldgate Lane and land to the south. The 
proposed site access along part of its eastern side includes an indicative 
retaining wall which can be suitably screened with landscape planting and 
controlled by condition. In addition, an indicative low level retaining wall is 
proposed to the south side of part of the new length of footway to the 
south of Hallfieldgate Lane and within the northern curtilage of No. 43.   

 
7.20  The submitted drawings demonstrate that a suitable access can be 

formed in this location.  The internal road layout, landscaping and 
retaining wall within the site are detailed matters that would be properly 
addressed at the reserved matters stage which would cover landscaping, 
appearance, layout and scale.  Only the site access is a matter to be 
considered under this application.   

 
7.21 Concern has been raised in respect of some of the data that has informed 

the submitted Transport Assessment; and the necessity of a new and 
comprehensive traffic survey;  however the Highway Authority have not 
raised any such concerns.  As the application does not change the 
description of the development (i.e. 90 dwellings) the traffic generation 
would be identical to that previously considered and the impact on the 
highway would be the same as both the extant permission and this 
application propose a single point of access to the highway.  Similarly no 
objection has been raised to the retention of the current access.   

 
7.22 Concern has been raised by local residents regarding the highway 

implications of the development and the volume of traffic using 
Hallfieldgate Lane. The NPPF is clear in that it states that development 
should only be prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be 
an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 
impacts on the road network would be severe. This matter has previously 
been considered by consultees and reviewed by the Inspector in allowing 
the appeal. 

 
7.27 Therefore, in considering all the issues pertaining to Highway Safety, the 

comments of the HA are clear in stating that the scheme is wholly 
acceptable from a highway safety point of view and Officers concur with 
that assessment.  

Page 24



 
 Impact on Heritage Assets  
 
7.28 The application site lies to the east of the Hallfieldgate Conservation Area 

which consists of a former small rural hamlet with Hallfield Hall as the 
main focus. The relocated access would be sited further away from the 
conservation area boundary and therefore have a lesser impact than the 
approved location.  The siting and design of dwellings would be addressed 
through the reserved matters application.  On this issue Officers  consider 
that the proposals would preserve the character of the conservation area.   

 
Impact on the streetscene 

 
7.29 The proposed site access would be between the boundary of no.43 and 

the row of trees that front the lane and which are protected by a TPO.  The 
development would necessitate the removal of a section of hedgerow and 
some engineering works within the site to form the access  (see fig 7 
above).  The formation of the footway in front of no.43 would necessitate 
the removal of a small section fronting the highway although the majority 
of these works lie within the highway grass verge. (see fig 8 below)  

 

Page 25



 
 Figure 8:  site access location  
 

Page 26



 
Figure 9:  location of new footpath 
 
7.30 Officers consider that removal of the hedgerow to form the new access, 

and the revised location of the access would not have a detrimental 
impact upon the character of the street in this location. In respect of no. 43 
a new 1.2m high fence would replace the hedgerow above a retaining wall 
on the garden side. There are similar examples of low fencing to the 
frontage of properties in the vicinity of the site and this is considered to be 
acceptable. Details of the fence can be required by condition on 
application 22/00185/FL.       

 

Page 27



 
Effect on Neighbours 

 
7.31 The property most likely impacted by the relocation of the access would 

be 43 Hallfieldgate Lane as the new access would be located closer to this 
properties boundary.  However, it has a large side garden between the 
new access point and the existing dwelling.  Whilst there may be some 
increased disturbance compared to the approved access  officers do not 
consider that it would result in a significant or materially detrimental impact 
on this property or its privacy and amenity.  The owners of the property 
would also need to be party to the legal agreement to maintain the 
visibility splays and have not raised any objections to the proposals.  
Otherwise, the impact on neighbouring properties of a new access is 
considered not materially different to the approved scheme. 

 
7.32 The layout and design of the overall scheme are not to be determined at 

this stage. Therefore, it is at the reserved matters stage that any issues 
affecting the living conditions of adjacent residents from any new 
dwellings, such as privacy and noise, would be considered. Nonetheless, 
the illustrative plan shows that adequate separation distances between 
existing and new dwellings could be provided between existing and 
proposed houses. 

 
Design and layout 

 
7.33 This is an s73 application relating solely to the access. The layout and 

masterplan are indicative although Officers consider that the masterplan 
demonstrates some good design principles and has the potential to create 
an attractive place to live.   
 

 Other matters 
 
7.34 The technical consultees have not raised any objections to the variation of 

conditions relating to the access.  Conditions imposed by the Inspector will 
be re-imposed on any decision taken to grant this s73 permission and a 
s106 legal agreement would replace the Unilateral Undertaking submitted 
with the appeal.  This would ensure the contributions towards educational 
provision and 20% affordable housing are carried forward.   

 
7.35 The Council’s Parks Officers have commented on the layout however the 

masterplan is indicative and matters such as landscaping and layout 
would be addressed through a reserved matters submission and are not 
for consideration under this application.   

 
7.35 NHS Chesterfield Royal Hospital have requested a s106 contribution, 

however as the matters only being considered here are the site access; 
it’s not appropriate to renegotiate the s106 contributions as the impact of 
the development on social infrastructure has already been considered by 
the Planning Inspector.   

Page 28



 
 Ecology and Trees 
  
7.36 In reaching the original appeal decision the inspector commented in 

respect of biodiversity that whilst the proposal would result in the 
development of open fields the illustrative plans indicated significant 
areas of open space and improved planting. These are matters that 
would be considered when the landscaping and layout are finally 
determined but the inspector was satisfied that the proposal has the 
potential to enhance the biodiversity of the site. 

 
7.37 The Derbyshire Wildlife Trust (DWT) have been consulted on the revised 
 proposals and have not raised an objection.  
 
7.38    The access approved on appeal was to be formed in the existing gap 

between the row of TPO trees that front Hallfieldgate Lane where an 
existing access is already formed; whereas the new access would be 
located to the east of these trees.  The new, now proposed, kerb edge 
would run under the canopy of one of the trees. However this was also 
the case with the approved access. The approved outline permission 
includes a condition requiring a detailed Tree Protection Plan to be 
submitted. 

 
7.39 The Council’s Tree Officer has commented on the current application 

that  the creation of the existing access, that serves the existing dwelling 
and offices, has resulted in damage being sustained to some protected 
trees  either side of it.  The Tree Officer’s view is that the widening of the 
access, as approved by the Inspector, will cause significant damage to 
both of the trees either side of that access. In his opinion this would be 
detrimental to those trees and should be avoided if at all possible. This 
being the case, the Tree Officer advises that the newly proposed access 
to the east of the TPO’d trees is the better option as whilst the new 
access appears to show it cutting through the RPA of  one of the 
protected trees (and this would normally be avoided) this will have  a 
lesser impact overall on the TPO trees. In view of the applicants 
permitted failback of implementing the approved access, and most 
notably the advice of the Council’s own Tree Officer, Officers consider 
that the impact on the tree is acceptable in this instance as it provides a 
better option than the applicant implementing the approved access..   

 
8.0 Summary and Conclusion  
 
8.1 This is an application for the variation of conditions which relate to the 

relocation of the access to serve an approved development of 90 
dwellings.  Officers are satisfied that the proposals can be dealt with as a 
Section 73 application rather than requiring a new outline application and 
have sought independent legal opinion on this point.   

 

Page 29



8.2 The Highway Authority have not raised an objection to the new access, 
and the proposals are considered to be acceptable in terms of their 
impact on the character of the area and the adjacent Conservation Area.  
The proposals would have some impact on the long term health of a 
TPO’d tree however this is considered to be preferable than the fall back 
of implementing the extant permission with an access that would have a 
greater impact on the TPO’s trees. Officers attach considerable weight to 
this issue. 

 
8.3 A s106 agreement would ensure that the contributions to education and 

affordable housing are carried over to this new permission.   
 
8.4 Accordingly, as the extant permission remains live, despite the site lying  

outside the settlement development limit for Shirland,  it is recommended 
that, subject to conditions, permission should be granted. 

 
 
9.0 Recommendation 
 
9.1 GRANT Full Planning Permission subject to the following conditions and 

section 106 agreement with Heads of Terms for this  
 
Conditions 
 
1.  Details of the appearance, landscaping, layout, and scale, (hereinafter called 

"the reserved matters") shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
local planning authority before any development takes place and the 
development shall be carried out as approved 

 
 
2.  Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the local 

planning authority not later than three years from the 22 January 2021.  
 
3. The development hereby permitted shall take place not later than two years 

from the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved. 
 
4.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the following approved plans: Site Location Plan Drawing No 07/1657/LP Rev 
N; and Modified Site Access Drawing No. 0720 revision P03.  
 

5. No more than 90 dwellings shall be built on the site. 
 
6.  The details to be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning 

authority as part of the landscaping reserved matters shall include a scheme 
for the delivery and future management and maintenance of all on-site open 
space, including a Landscape Management Plan and a timetable for 
implementation relative to the completion of the dwellings hereby approved. 
The approved scheme of open space shall be implemented in full in 

Page 30



accordance with the approved timetable, and shall be managed and 
maintained in accordance with the approved scheme thereafter 

 
 
7. The details to be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning 

authority as part of the appearance reserved matters shall include a scheme 
for mitigating climate change through sustainable design and construction of 
the dwellings. The dwellings shall be constructed in accordance with the 
approved climate change scheme. 

 
8. No development shall take place until a detailed Tree Protection Plan, 

showing the positions, species and crown spread of trees to be retained 
within, and adjacent to, the application site together with measures for their 
protection for the duration of the works, has been submitted to, and approved 
in writing by, the local planning authority. The means of protection shall be 
installed in accordance with the approved scheme before any works 
commence on site and shall be retained in position until all the building works 
hereby approved have been completed. The area within the fenced/protected 
area shall not be used for storage or the parking of machinery or vehicles and 
the ground levels shall not be altered. 

 
9. No vegetation clearance shall take place between 1st March and 31st August 

inclusive, unless preceded by a nesting bird survey undertaken by a 
competent ecologist and the survey report shall first have been submitted to, 
and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. If nesting birds are 
present, the report shall include details for an appropriate exclusion zone 
which will be implemented prior to the commencement of vegetation 
clearance and which shall remain in place until the chicks have fledged. No 
works shall be undertaken within the exclusion zone(s) whilst nesting birds 
are present. 

 
10. No development above ground level shall take place until a Biodiversity 

Enhancement Plan has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
local planning authority to achieve a net gain in biodiversity. The plan shall 
provide for (although shall not necessarily be limited to) the following 
measures and their ongoing management and maintenance all with 
timescales: 
 
• Integrated bat boxes in 25% of dwellings clearly shown on a plan (positions/ 
specification/numbers); 
• Bird boxes (including swift boxes) in 25% of dwellings clearly shown on a 
plan (positions/specification/numbers); 
• Insect bricks in 10% of dwellings clearly shown on a plan (positions/ 
specification/numbers); 
• Measures to maintain connectivity for hedgehogs clearly shown on a plan 
(fencing gaps 130mm x 130mm and/or railings and/or hedgerows); and 
• Summary of ecologically beneficial landscaping (full details to be shown in 
Landscape Plans). 
 

Page 31



Thereafter the measures shall be implemented, managed and maintained in 
accordance with the details and timescales as approved. 

 
11. No development shall take place until drainage details for the disposal of foul 

sewage and a timetable for implementation have been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The scheme shall be 
implemented in full and in accordance with the approved details and timetable 
and shall be retained as such thereafter. 

 
12. No development shall take place until a detailed design and associated 

management and maintenance plan, with timescale(s), for the surface water 
drainage for the site, (including highways surface water) has been submitted 
to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. This shall be in 
accordance with the principles outlined within: 
a. Land at Hallfieldgate Lane, Shirland, Derbyshire Flood Risk Assessment, 
(March 2019 by Armstrong Stokes & Clayton Ltd) and also including any 
subsequent amendments or updates to this document as approved by the 
Flood Risk Management Team; and 
b. DEFRA’s Non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage 
systems (March 2015). 
 
The approved surface water drainage system shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved detailed design prior to occupation of any 
dwelling and shall be retained, managed and maintained thereafter in 
accordance with the details and timescales approved. 
 

13. No development shall take place until a detailed assessment has been 
provided to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority to 
demonstrate that the proposed destination for surface water accords with the 
drainage hierarchy as set out in paragraph reference ID: 7-080-20150323 of 
the Planning Practice Guidance. 

 
14. No development shall take place until a scheme has been submitted to, and 

approved in writing by, the local planning authority giving details for how 
surface water run-off from the site will be avoided during the construction 
phase. The details may include arrangements for collection, balancing and/or 
settlement systems for these flows. The approved system shall be 
implemented and operating before the commencement of any works which 
would lead to increased surface water run-off from the site during the 
construction phase. 

 
15. No development shall take place until a construction management plan or 

construction method statement has been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the local planning authority. The approved plan/method statement 
shall be implemented prior to the commencement of any works and adhered 
to throughout the construction period. The statement shall provide for: 
• the parking of vehicles for site operatives and visitors; 
• routes for construction traffic, including abnormal loads/cranes etc; 
• hours of operation; 

Page 32



• methods for the prevention of debris being carried onto the highway; 
• pedestrian and cyclist protection; and 
• any proposed temporary traffic restrictions 
 

16. No development shall take place until a temporary access for construction 
purposes has been provided to Hallfieldgate Lane, generally in accordance 
with Drawing No 0720 revision P03 and provided with visibility splays 
measuring 2.4m x 54.0m to the east and 2.4m x 47.0m to the west. The area 
in advance of the sightlines shall remain free from any obstructions to visibility 
over 1.0m high, relative to the nearside carriageway channel level, for the 
time over which the temporary access is in use. The temporary access shall 
be retained for the duration of the construction phase or until such time as it is 
replaced by the permanent access'. 

 
17. No development above ground level shall take place until a detailed scheme 

of highway improvement works for the provision of a new estate street 
junction formed to Hallfieldgate Lane shall be submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall provide for: a 
minimum 5.5m carriageway, 2.0m footway and 1.0m margin; a maximum 
gradient of 1.30 for the first 15.0 and 1:20 beyond; visibility splays measuring 
2.4m x 54.0m to the east and 2.4m x 47.0m to the west; and shall include 
highway works for the realignment of the carriageway and tactile crossing 
adjacent to the site, in accordance with submitted Drawing No. 0720 Revision 
P04, together with a programme for the implementation and completion of the 
works. The highway works shall be implemented in accordance with the 
details and programme as approved. The visibility splays shall thereafter be 
maintained free from obstruction over 1.0m high relative to the nearside 
carriageway channel level. 

 
18. Within 28 days of the permanent access being constructed and brought into 

use any works comprised in the temporary access to Hallfieldgate Lane, not 
incorporated into the permanent access, shall be removed and the highway 
shall be reinstated in accordance with a scheme that shall first have been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. 

 
19. The details to be submitted with the layout reserved matters shall include 

details of: 
• The design and layout of internal roads which shall accord with the guidance 
contained in the “Manual for Streets” and Derbyshire County Council’s 
residential design guide; 
• arrangements for the parking and manoeuvring of residents and visitors’ 
vehicles, together with secure cycle parking; 
• suitable turning arrangements to enable service and delivery vehicles to 
turn; and 
• arrangements for bin storage and collection. 
 
The development shall take place in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Page 33



20. Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling a Travel Plan shall have been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The 
Travel Plan shall set out proposals (including a timetable), to promote travel 
by sustainable modes, and shall be implemented in accordance with the 
timetable set out therein. Reports demonstrating progress in promoting 
sustainable transport measures shall be submitted annually, on each 
anniversary of the date of the Travel Plan being approved, to the local 
planning authority for approval for a period of five years from the first 
occupation of the development. 

 
21. No development shall take place until further works deemed necessary in the 

DAB Geotechnics Ltd report ‘Phase 1 Contamination Assessment Proposed 
Residential Development of Land to the South of Hallfieldgate Lane Shirland 
(Ref: DABGeot/17005/Final; dated 4th March 2019)’ have been undertaken 
by a competent person in accordance with good practice guidance for the 
investigation and assessment of land contamination; and a report of that 
investigation and assessment has been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by, the local planning authority. 
 
Where the site investigation identifies unacceptable levels of contamination, 
no development shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme to bring 
the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable 
risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and 
historical environment and a timetable for implementation has been submitted 
to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The scheme shall 
have regard to CLR 11 and other relevant current guidance and shall include 
a timetable for implementation. The scheme shall include all works to be 
undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria and site 
management procedures. The scheme shall ensure that the site will not 
qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation. The 
scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the details and timetable as 
approved. At least 14 days’ written notice shall be given to the local planning 
authority prior to commencing works in connection with the remediation 
scheme and no dwellings shall be occupied until the approved remediation 
works have been carried out in full in compliance with the approved 
methodology and good practice guidance. 

 

 
22. If during the construction associated with the development hereby 

approved any suspected areas of contamination are discovered, then all 
works shall be suspended until the nature and extent of the contamination is 
assessed and a report has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
local planning authority. The local planning authority shall be notified as soon 
as is reasonably practicable following the discovery of any suspected areas of 
contamination. The suspect material shall be re-evaluated through the 
process described in the Phase I report (DAB Geotechnics Ltd ‘Phase 1 
Contamination Assessment Proposed Residential Development of Land to the 
South of Hallfieldgate Lane Shirland (Ref: DABGeot/17005/Final; dated 4th 

Page 34



March 2019)) submitted with the application and through the process 
described in condition 21 above. Upon completion of the remediation works a 
validation report prepared by a competent person shall be submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the local planning authority before any particular 
dwelling is occupied. The validation report(s) shall include details of the 
remediation works and Quality Assurance/ Quality Control results to show that 
the works have been carried out in full and in accordance with the approved 
methodology. Details of any validation sampling and analysis to show the site 
has achieved the approved remediation standard, together with the necessary 
waste management documentation shall be included. 

 
 
23. No development shall take place until a Written Scheme of Investigation 

for archaeological work has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
local planning authority, and until any pre-start element of the approved 
scheme has been completed to the written satisfaction of the local planning 
authority. The scheme shall include an assessment of significance and 
research questions; and 
1) The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording; 
2) The programme for post investigation assessment; 
3) Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording; 
4) Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and 
records of the site investigation; 
5) Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of 
the site investigation; and 
6) Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake 
the works set out within the Written Scheme of Investigation. 
 
No development shall take place other than in accordance with the approved 
Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation. 
 
No dwelling shall be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation 
assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme set out in 
the Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation and the provision to be 
made for analysis, publication and dissemination of results and archive 
deposition has been secured. 
 
 

24. No development shall take place until a scheme to enhance and 
maximise employment and training opportunities during the construction stage 
of the development, including a timetable for implementation, has been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The 
approved scheme shall then be implemented in full and in accordance with 
the approved details and timetable. 

Page 35



 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20 DECEMBER 2022 

 
 

Reference Number: 22/00884/RM  Application expiry: 23/12/22 
 
Application Type: S73 Approved Plans    
 
Proposal Description: S73 application to vary condition 1 (Approved Plans) of 
planning approval 18/00812/RM to vary the layout and landscaping details (Major 
Development) 
 
At: Land to the East of Prospect House, Highstairs Lane, Stretton 
 
For: Meadowview Homes 
 
Third Party Reps: 1 local resident   
 
Parish: Stretton    Ward: Pilsley and Morton 
 
Report Author: Graeme Cooper  Date of Report: November 2022  
 
MAIN RECOMMENDATION:  Grant permission, subject to conditions 
  

 
Figure 1: Location plan, with site edged in red 

Page 36

Agenda Item 5



1.0 Reason for Report 
 
1.1 Cllr Cooper requested that this and another application at this site be 

considered by Planning Committee. The reasons being the size and scale 
of development has increased significantly and committee should assess 
the changes and the likely impacts on the local area.  

 
2.0 Proposal and Background 
 
 Site Description 
 
2.1 The application site covers an area of approx 1.15 hectares in size and 

was formally a field to the north of Stretton. It is bound by a wall which 
fronts onto the A61 to the east and Highstairs Lane to the south. Access 
into the site is taken from Highstairs Lane.  
 

2.2 To the west is Prospect House, a detached dwelling set in large grounds. 
The western boundary of the application site is made up of a hedge and 
wire fencing, with a number of trees located on or close to the boundary 
protected by tree preservation order (NEDDC TPO 266).  
 

2.3 The site has an extant planning permission for 28 dwellings andwork has 
commenced. A hedge which once fronted Highstairs Lane has been 
transplanted, in line with the original permission, to the northern boundary 
of the site.  
 

2.4 An access has been formed onto Highstairs Lane in line with the 
permission and, as discussed above, ground works are well under way on 
site.  

 
 Proposal  

 
2.5 This is an application made under Section 73 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 (as amended) to vary condition 1 (Approved Plans) of 
planning approval 18/00812/RM to vary the layout and landscaping 
details.  
 

2.6 The reason for the application is due to the site having been purchased by 
a different developer who wishes to use their own house types as opposed 
to those originally approved.  
 

2.7 A site plan and landscaping details have been submitted for consideration.  
 

Amendments 
 

2.8 None.  
 

Page 37



3.0 Relevant Planning History (not the full site history) 
 
3.1 14/00249/OL - Outline planning application (means of access submitted) 

for residential development and improvements to Highstairs Lane (Major 
Development) (Departure from Development Plan)(Additional 
Plans/Information) (S106 agreed) 

 
3.2 15/00910/FL - Application to vary condition 3 of 14/00249/OL regarding 

provision of affordable housing (Conditionally Approved) 
 
3.3 17/00768/RM - Approval of reserved matters (layout, scale, appearance 

and landscaping) for the erection of 28 dwellings pursuant to outline 
permission 15/00910/FL (Major Development) (Amended Plans) (Refused) 

 
3.4 18/00812/RM - Approval of reserved matters (layout and landscaping) for 

the erection of 28 dwellings pursuant to outline permission 15/00910/OL 
(Major Development)(Amended Plans) (Conditionally Approved)  

 
3.5 19/00501/DISCON - Application to discharge conditions 3 (Affordable 

Housing), 6  (Boundary Treatments), 7 (Samples), 8 (Ground Levels),  9 
(Landscaping Scheme) 13 (Schedule of Landscape Maintenance), 14 
(Surface Water drainage), 15 (Foul drainage works), 16 (Temporary 
Access), 17 (Site accommodation), 18 (Pedestrian Crossing) 19 (Highway 
improvement works) 20 (New Junction), 27 (Employment and Training), 28 
(Public Art),  29 (Sound Insulation and Noise Reduction) and 31 (Intrusive 
site investigation works) pursuant of 19/00943/FL (Amended 
Title) (Conditions Discharged)  

 
3.6 19/00601/AMEND - Non-material amendment to planning application 

18/00812/RM to reduce Chestnut home type roof pitch by 2.5 degrees, 
omit personnel doors from detached garages, clarify that Plot 14 is brick 
not stone, clarify first floor windows of Maples plot 2, 3 and 13 and define 
extents of ornamental string courses  (Approved) 

 
3.7 19/00943/FL – Application to vary condition 20 (visibility splays) of 

planning approval 15/00910/FL to formalise within highways impact 
statement. (Major Development)  (Conditionally Approved) 

 
3.8 20/01302/DISCON – Application to discharge condition 17 (Site 

Accommodation) pursuant to planning application 19/00943/FL (Condition 
Discharged)  

 
3.9 21/00621/FL – Application to vary S106 agreement and create 

Supplemental Deed to allow discounted affordable housing 
units (Approved) 

 

Page 38



3.10 22/00885/RM - S73 application to vary condition 1 (Approved Plans) of 
planning approval 17/00768/RM to vary the scale and appearance details 
(Major Development) (Pending Consideration)  

  
4.0 Consultation Reponses  
 
4.1 Parish Council raised no comments.  
 
4.2 Ward Member called the application into committee for the reasons raised 

in section 1.1 above.  
 

4.3 Highways Authority (HA) note that as part of this proposal, the applicant 
wishes to amend consented house types. The road layout proposed as 
part of this application is predominantly the same as consent for planning 
application 18/00812/RM and, therefore, not a material change. In line 
with current design guidance, the Highway Authority typically seeks 2no. 
or 3no. parking spaces per 2/3 bedroom or 4/4+ bedroom dwelling, 
respectively. Subject to sufficient parking provision being retained, there 
are no highway objections to the above proposal.  

 
4.4 Environmental Health (EHO) confirm that any schemes submitted in 

regards fulfilling ground contamination or noise mitigation conditions 
should be updated to reflect the proposed layout changes. 

 
4.5 The Coal Authority raised no objections to this planning application and 

Condition 31 need not be duplicated on any reissued consent.  
 
4.6 Derbyshire Wildlife Trust (DWT) compared the submitted landscaping 

plans to those previously approved. DWT have not identified any 
significant changes that will affect biodiversity. Minor changes are 
apparent in the way the root protection areas of the western trees are 
represented, however the layout appears broadly similar. 

 
 Since our previous comments on bat and bird boxes, the British Standard 

for Integral Nest Boxes BS: 42021:2022 has been published, which 
requires a far greater number of boxes to be incorporated within 
developments schemes. Whilst we appreciate that the scheme was 
approved prior to this, we consider that whilst making amendments to this 
plan, the opportunity is presented to increase the number of bat and bird 
boxes incorporated within proposals. Any increase in number would be 
welcomed and bring the scheme further into line with current guidance. 
Houses in the north of the site would present ideal options for additional 
bat and bird boxes with flight lines into open countryside. 

 
Furthermore, DWT consider that a native hedgerow along the site frontage 
would be more in keeping with the rural surroundings than an evergreen 

Page 39



laurel hedge. Native single-species hedges such as yew, beech or 
hornbeam could be considered to provide a more formal character than a 
mixed hedgerow, if desired. 

 
4.7 Yorkshire Water Authority (YWA) raised no comments. 
 
4.8 Council’s Drainage Engineer raised no comments.  
 
4.9 Council Housing Officer raised no comments. 
 
4.10 Employment and Skills Officer raised no comments. 
 
4.11 Council Tree Officer (TO) has provided three comments on the proposed 

development. The first was post a site visit to Prospect House, the second 
was based on the impact of on-site grouting and the last based on new 
plans submitted by the applicant. Each of these is summarised below: 

 
4.12 Following a site visit made to Prospect House on 28th November the TO 

undertook a tree measuring exercise of the trees along the western 
boundary of the application site. Especially those trees covered by TPO 
266. Measurements were undertaken in line with Annex C of BS 
5837:2012 guidance.  The TO noted a previous report had chosen to 
group some trees and the complete omission of a mature Lime. The 
measurements undertaken by the TO are broadly in line with other 
reports, with the exception of one Lime tree (T4). The TO is of the opinion 
that this discrepancy arose due to the position that the measurement was 
taken from. The new measurements found that the RPA should be larger 
than the previously agreed RPA. It is important to note that the proposed 
development does not encroach into the revised nominal RPA and it 
should be possible to position a protective barrier fence whilst allowing the 
construction of the development. Soil amelioration is the main concern 
here. It is also considered that permitted development rights for plots 
along the western boundary of the site be removed to prevent any further 
harm to the protected trees.  

  
4.13 With regards to grout drilling, the TO considers that Microtunnelling or 

small diameter piling within the RPA of trees to be retained is usually an 
acceptable form of intrusion, with a bore diameter 100-300mm being 
acceptable within the British Standard. The TO confirms that he would 
have no concerns over the direct effect of drilling on the trees roots. He 
does however have concerns about the potential for soil compaction from 
the drilling rig passing within the RPA. Fortunately, these works may have 
been undertaken within the season of growth dormancy for the trees, and 
timely intervention through soil amelioration can go a long way in 
mitigating this concern before the next season of growth in the spring. Soil 
amelioration measures, such as air spade attendance to reduce soil bulk 

Page 40



density, can be specified to mitigate this potentially compacted soil and I 
would encourage this is undertaken before the onset of spring. 

 
4.14 After reviewing The Protective Fencing Plan (DWG: JH_TPP1/1) looks 

ideal and appears to demonstrate we can both successfully support the 
proposal and protect the nominal RPAs of retained trees. The Tree 
Protection Plan should be subject of condition. It seems the discrepancy 
between my measurement for T3 (our map) and T11 (their map) is due to 
the estimation of DBH for this poplar tree rather than an attempt to 
measure it. The tree was covered in ivy and straddled the barbwire fence 
line so the TO didn’t attempt to take an accurate measurement through 
fear of injury. The TO was happy to accept the 750mm DBH measurement 
for T3/T11 which is similar to the RJ Report measurement of 650mm and 
the JB Report measured at 770mm. 

 
4.15 The Environment Agency (EA) did not request the planning condition the 

applicant is seeking to vary. We advise you seek the views of the 
consultee who requested the condition on the information submitted. 

 
4.16 Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Trust raised no 

comments.  
 
4.17 Council Parks Team raised no comments. 
 
4.18 Derbyshire Police (Designing Out Crime Officer) notes that application 

22/00884 is to vary the later approved matters of landscaping and layout, 
and that application 22/00885 is to vary the matters of appearance and 
scale approved at an earlier time on appeal.  Don’t have any comments to 
make in respect of any of these matters, as all of the detail submitted is 
acceptable from a community safety perspective. 

 
4.19 On matters of administration. The site plan legend within 22/00884 has 

housing numbers which add to 32, not the 28 set out. There looks to be 
some anomalies with the mix and numbers to resolve. The house type 
plans listed within 22/00885 has the Bamburgh misspelt as Barnburgh, 
one Balmoral plan shown as a Barnard and one Richmond plan listed as a 
Warwick. [Officer note: An updated site plan was submitted and addresses 
this annotation error. The old plan is labelled as “superseded”.) 

 
4.20 Councils Refuse Team raised no comments. 
 
4.21 Lead Local Flood Authority raised no comments. 
 
5.0 Representations  
 

Page 41



5.1 The application was publicised by way of neighbour letters and the display 
of site notices adjacent to the site. A site notice was placed adjacent to the 
site on a lamppost on Stretton Road, which expired on 9 December. An 
advert was also placed in the local press on 20 October and expired on 10 
November. 

 
5.2 1 local resident has made representations raising the following comments 

objecting to the proposed development: 
 

 Overall the size, scale, layout and density of the development has 
increased significantly [Officer note: This is considered in the 
assessment below] 

 The coverage of buildings on site has materially increased [Officer 
note: This is considered in the assessment below]  

 The size of the proposed dwellings has increased [Officer note: This is 
considered in the assessment below] 

 Increase in development will have negative impact on the roots of 
protected trees [Officer note: The Councils Tree Officer has reviewed 
the proposals on the trees and this is considered in the assessment 
below] 

 The agreed RPA previously approved is incorrect [Officer note: the 
RPA was agreed on the advice of a qualified arborist]  

 Windows on proposed dwellings will negatively impact existing 
residents [Officer note: The impact on neighbours is considered below] 

 Some houses are now 3 storey in scale – in previous appeals the 
Inspector stated that all dwellings should be 2 storey – the increase will 
negatively impact neighbours [Officer note: There are no 3 storey 
dwellings proposed, it is however noted that the Durham house type 
has rooms in the roof space, this accounts for 6 dwellings]  

 Frosted windows omitted from plans [Officer note: Unclear which 
dwelling is of concern here but it is assumed the objector is referring to 
plot 7 which includes two upper floor bathroom windows which face 
south towards Prospect House. An assessment of these windows is 
considered below] 

 Previous appeal allows 2, 3 and 4 bed dwellings, this scheme now 
includes 5 bed dwellings [Officer note: The proposed scheme includes 
the Hampton (2 units) and Warwick (1 unit) house type which are 5 
bed dwellings. An assessment of this impact is considered below]    

 Inaccuracies and/or missing information: 
o Two site plans submitted, one labelled superseded [officer note: 

Drawing STRET-001 date scanned 14 October is the latest site 
plan that members should consider. The same plan dated 6 
September has been superseded. This is clearly labelled on the 
public access site and is retained for public scrutiny in the 
interest of transparency.]  

Page 42



o Impossible to determine which house type relates to site plan 
[Officer note: The submitted site plan clearly illustrates how 
many of each house type and where each house type would be 
on site. It should be noted that the Balmoral and Richmond 
house types were submitted on 10 October so not with the 
original suite of plans.] 

o A number of versions of house types and properties which don’t 
relate to the site plan [Officer note: Unclear which house types 
are an issue here, but it could relate to the use of (OPP) on the 
plan. This refers to ‘handing’ or flipping the proposed house type 
and is clear to Officer’s in assessing the proposal.] 

o Western boundary inaccurate [Officer note: The red line plan 
submitted is accurate and Officer’s have no reason to believe 
this is inaccurate.] 

 Tree survey undertaken by John Booth has expired [Officer note: It is 
noted that the report by John Booth has expired, however the 
developer could build out the previously approved scheme in line with 
that approval. Nevertheless Officer’s have requested that the Councils 
Tree Officer review the proposal.]  

 Work has been underway on site for 6 weeks [Officer note: The 
developer is working to an extant permission and having visited the 
site is undertaking ground works and installing roadways.] 

 
6.0 Relevant Policy and Strategic Context 
 

North East Derbyshire Local Plan 2014-2034 (LP) 
 
6.1 The following policies of the LP are material to the determination of this 

application:  
 

SS1 Sustainable Development 
SS2  Spatial Strategy and the Distribution of Development 
SS9 Development within the Countryside 
SDC2 Trees, Woodlands and hedgerows   
SDC3 Landscape Character   
SDC4  Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
SDC12 High Quality Design and Place making 
ID3 Sustainable Travel  

 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 
6.2 The overarching aims of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

have been considered in the assessment of this application.  
 

Page 43



6.3 Essentially, proposals should ‘achieve well-designed places’ (chapter 12), 
‘make effective use of land’ (chapter 11) as well as ‘conserve and 
enhance the natural environment’ (chapter 15).    
 
Other Material Planning Considerations  
 

6.4 Successful Places Interim Planning Guidance, adopted December 2013 
  
7.0 Planning Issues 
 
 Principle of Development 
 
7.1 The principle of development on the site was established through the 

granting of outline planning permission 14/00249/OL and 15/00910/FL. A 
material start has been made on site so the approved planning permission 
remains extant. 

 
Main Issues 
 

7.2 The main material considerations with this application are the proposed 
changes to the layout and landscaping details previously approved under 
application 18/00812/RM. The proposed changes are considered below.   
 
Layout Considerations  
 

7.3 Planning approval 18/00812/RM approved details of the layout and 
landscaping for 28 dwellings linked to outline approval 15/00910/OL. The 
previously approved layout can be seen below in Figure 2. The application 
was considered by members of planning committee in April 2019. 
 

Page 44



 
Figure 2: Previously approved layout 

7.4 The proposed layout differs slightly from that previously granted 
permission due to changes in the developer and the house types they use 
being different.  
 

7.5 Below in Figure 3 is the proposed layout with the previously approved 
scheme overlay on the plan in pink. The proposal, the subject of this 
application, is for 28 units so does not increase the number of properties 
over that which already has planning permission.  
 

7.6 In terms of differences in the layout from that previously approved, the two 
schemes are very similar. When viewing the site from public viewpoints on 
Stretton Road and Highstairs Lane the two schemes would have a very 
similar layout. Some units fronting Stretton Road have had garages 
omitted increasing the gaps in built form between properties.  
 

7.7 The proposed units which front Stretton Road and Highstairs Lane do not 
appear any closer to the public highways than those previously approved 
and as such Officer’s do not consider that there would be any detrimental 
impact on neighbouring residents.  

Page 45



7.8 Concern has been raised by a neighbouring resident to the layout of the 
proposed scheme compared to the approved scheme which will increase 
the developable area and in turn have a detrimental impact on protected 
trees.  
 

7.9 It is proposed to amend the position of plots along the western edge of the 
site which could have a potential impact on Prospect House to the west. 
However the proposed plots will not extend closer to this property and as 
such Officer’s are satisfied with this relationship.  
 

 
Figure 3: Proposed layout with overlay of previous approved scheme in pink 

7.10 Officer’s note that the proposed development would not enter the agreed 
Root Protection Area (RPA) as approved in 2018. An updated plan has 
been submitted (Drawing JH_TPP1/1) as part of application 22/00884/RM 
illustrating a revised RPA. For the purposes of the scheme before 
members, the revised layout would not enter the amended RPA. The 
merits of this RPA are considered in the landscape assessment below.  

 
7.11 Overall Officer’s are satisfied that the proposed changes in the layout of 

the scheme will have no greater impact on the site and the surrounding 
street scene when compared to the previously approved scheme. 
Furthermore there would be no detrimental impact on the protected trees 
to the west or translocated hedgerow to the north.  

 

Page 46



Landscaping Considerations 
 

7.12 A scheme of landscaping was approved (drawing GL0779 01 Rev F) along 
with a Landscape Management Plan (GL0779 Rev A) through the course 
of the 2018 application process. The landscaping scheme included a 
comprehensive planting schedule and agreed Root Protection Area (RPA) 
in line with a report prepared on behalf of the Council by John Booth.  
 

7.13 A proposed landscaping scheme (drawing GL0779 03) has also been 
submitted to accompany the revised layout of the site. The scheme 
includes tree, shrub and hedgerow planting. Amenity and meadow 
grassland is also included on site. Confirmation has been received that the 
previously approved landscape management plan will be adhered to.  
 

7.14 As discussed above, concern has been raised as to the impact of 
development on the previously agreed RPA and protected trees. The 
Councils Tree Officer and case officer visited the site to assess the trees 
along the western boundary.    
 

7.15 It was clear from visiting the site that the previously agreed RPA contained 
some anomalies and omitted a mature Lime tree. Due to the comments 
received and the passage of time, the Council’s Tree Officer undertook 
new measurements of the protected trees along the western boundary. 
These measurements were put to the developer.  
 

7.16 As a result of the new measurements, an updated plan was submitted 
(Drawing JH_TPP1/1) illustrating a revised RPA, see Figure 4 below. 
Included with this drawing was a Tree Survey Plan (Drawing JH_TSP1/1) 
and Tree Survey Schedule, prepared by Outline Trees Arboricultural 
Consultancy. 
 

Page 47



 
Figure 4: Proposed revised RPA compared to previously approved RPA 

7.17 The Councils Tree Officer considered the submitted details and was of the 
opinion that the proposed Protective Fencing Plan (Drawing JH_TPP1/1) 
was accurate and protects the nominal RPA’s of the retained trees along 
the western boundary. This should be conditioned accordingly on any 
decision to approve the revised scheme. 
 

7.18 The Tree Officer also noted that on site grouting was underway at the time 
of the aforementioned site visit.  Whilst he has no concern at the impact of 
grouting on the trees, he is concerned about potential soil compaction. It is 
suggested that some soil amelioration measures are implemented on site 
before the onset of Spring. This can be controlled by way of condition on 
any decision.  
 

7.19 Due to the amended RPA extending closer to plots near the western 
boundary of the site, Officer’s consider it necessary to remove permitted 
development rights for extensions, outbuildings, hardstanding and means 
of enclosure for plots 1-7 dwellings in the interest of protecting the health 
and wellbeing of these protected trees.  
 

7.20 In addition to the above, DWT requested additional bird and bat boxes to 
be provided on site and that the laurel hedge fronting Highstairs Lane be 
amended to a native species. An amended plan is being prepared by the 
applicant and will take into account these requested changes. Any 

Page 48



submitted plan will be reported to members prior to the planning 
committee meeting.    
 

7.21 The proposed landscaping scheme is broadly in line with that previously 
approved and offers amendments, which will be submitted prior to the 
planning committee meeting, in line with the comments of DWT. 
Furthermore an updated RPA has been agreed between the developer 
and Council’s Tree Officer which is a betterment on that previously 
approved. As such Officer’s consider that the submitted tree protection 
measures put forward and proposed amended landscaping details are 
acceptable.  
 
Other Considerations 

 
7.22 As part of the 2018 application a Unilateral Planning Obligation (UPO) was 

agreed in November 2019 between the previous developer and the 
Council. Included in this UPO was agreement to pay a contribution 
towards Affordable Housing. The applicant has confirmed that they are 
aware that this contribution will still be made to the Council.  
 

8.0 Summary and Conclusion 
 
8.1 The site already has an extant planning permission for 28 dwellings. This 

proposal seeks to amend the approved layout and landscaping details.  
 

8.2 Amendments to the previously approved layout and landscaping details 
have been submitted to take into account the site being developed by a 
different housebuilder who inevitably have different house types.  
 

8.3 The layout proposed is broadly the same to that previously approved with 
subtle changes to the positon of the dwellings. Furthermore some garages 
are removed from the scheme.  
 

8.4 In landscape terms it is accepted that the RPA should be updated and that 
the revised scheme would be broadly in line with that previously approved. 
Furthermore once an updated landscaping scheme has been put forward 
addressing the comments of DWT, it is considered that the proposed 
development would be acceptable, both protecting the trees on the site 
boundary and also adding valuable landscaping to the site.  
 

8.5 There are no technical reasons to outweigh the above conclusions. 
 

8.6 Overall it is considered by Officer’s that the changes proposed to the 
layout and landscaping details would be acceptable and in conformity with 
the Development Plan and National Planning policy. 
 

Page 49



 
9.0 Recommendation 
 
9.1 That planning permission is CONDITIONALLY APPROVED with the final 

wording of the conditions delegated to the Planning Manager 
(Development Management):- 

 
 Conditions 
 

1) The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance 
with the details shown on the following drawings unless otherwise 
subsequently agreed through a formal submission under the Non 
Material Amendment procedures and unless otherwise required by any 
condition contained in this decision notice: 

 

 STRET – 001 - proposed site plan; date scanned 14.10.22 

 2016-458 005 rev A - Site location plan 

 2016-458 045 rev E - Hedge Translocation 

 2016-458 014 rev G - Refuse Collection Scheme 

 GL0779 - Hedge translocation Method Statement rev A 

 GL0779 - Landscape Management Plan rev D 

 GL0779 03 - Soft Landscaping proposals; date scanned 06.09.22 
[Officer note: this plan will be updated once amended details are 
submitted] 

 Highstairs Lane, Stretton - Mitigation Measures rev 1 

 JH_TPP1/1 (Protective Fencing Plan); date scanned 05.12.22 

 Scheme for mitigating climate change 
 

[Reason: For clarity and the avoidance of doubt.] 
 

2) Within 14 days of this decision, the revised Root Protection Area 
(RPA) labelled “October 2022 Fenceline” on drawing JH_TPP1/1 
(Proposed Layout; Protective Fencing Plan) shall be protected with 
fencing, as identified in Figure 1 of the Arboricultural Survey Report & 
Method Statement, prepared by John Booth dated February 2019. The 
approved RPA fencing shall be retained in position until all building 
works along the western boundary of the site have been completed. 
The area within the fenced/protected area shall not be used for 
storage or the parking of machinery or vehicles and the ground levels 
shall not be altered. 
 
[Reason: In the interest of protecting existing trees in accordance with 
policy SDC2 of the North East Derbyshire Local Plan.] 
 

3) Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, (or 

Page 50



any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order) no extensions (Part 1, 
Class A), curtilage buildings (Part 1, Class E), hard surfaces (Part 1, 
Class F) and means of enclosure (Part 2, Class A) shall be erected at 
Plots 1-7 hereby approved without first obtaining planning permission. 
 
[Reason: To offer protection to the trees covered by NEDDC TPO 266, 
in accordance with policy SDC2 of the North East Derbyshire Local 
Plan.] 
 

4) Within 14 days of the approved grouting works being completed within 
the agree Root Protection Area (RPA) as identified on drawing 
JH_TPP1/1 (Proposed Layout; Protective Fencing Plan), a scheme of 
soil amelioration within the RPA shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme of soil 
amelioration could include air spade attendance to reduce soil bulk 
density or similar mitigation works. The agreed scheme of soil 
amelioration within the RPA shall be implemented in full prior to the 
31st March 2023.  

 
[Reason: To mitigate soil compaction and to protect the health and 
wellbeing of the trees covered by NEDDC TPO 266, in accordance 
with policy SDC2 of the North East Derbyshire Local Plan.] 

 

Page 51



 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20 DECEMBER 2022 

 
 

Reference Number: 22/00885/RM  Application expiry: 23/12/22 
 
Application Type: S73 Approved Plans    
 
Proposal Description: S73 application to vary condition 1 (Approved Plans) of 
planning approval 17/00768/RM to vary the scale and appearance details (Major 
Development) 
 
At: Land to the East of Prospect House, Highstairs Lane, Stretton 
 
For: Meadowview Homes   
 
Third Party Reps: 1 local resident   
 
Parish: Stretton    Ward: Pilsley and Morton 
 
Report Author: Graeme Cooper  Date of Report: November 2022  
 
MAIN RECOMMENDATION:  Grant permission, subject to conditions 
  

 
Figure 1: Location plan, with site edged in red 

Page 52

Agenda Item 6



1.0 Reason for Report 
 
1.1 Cllr Cooper requested that this and another application at this site be 

considered by planning committee. The reasons being the size and scale 
of development has increased significantly and committee should assess 
the changes and the likely impacts on the local area.  

 
2.0 Proposal and Background 
 
 Site Description 
 
2.1 The application site covers an area of approx 1.15 hectares in size and 

was formally a field to the north of Stretton. It is bound by a wall which 
fronts onto the A61 to the east and Highstairs Lane to the south. Access 
into the site is taken from Highstairs Lane.  
 

2.2 To the west is Prospect House, a detached dwelling set in large grounds. 
The western boundary of the application the site is made up of a hedge 
and wire fencing, with a number of trees located on or close to the 
boundary protected by tree preservation order (NEDDC TPO 266).  
 

2.3 The site has an extant planning permission for 28 dwellings and work has 
commenced on site. A hedge which once fronted Highstairs Lane has 
been transplanted, in line with the original permission, to the northern 
boundary of the site.  
 

2.4 An access has been formed onto Highstairs Lane in line with the 
permission and, as discussed above, ground works are well under way on 
site.  

 
 Proposal  

 
2.5 This is an application under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990 (as amended) to vary condition 1 (Approved Plans) of planning 
approval 18/00812/RM to vary the scale and appearance details.   
 

2.6 The reason for the application is due to the site having been purchased by 
a different developer who wishes to use their own house types.  
 

2.7 A site plan and house type drawings have been submitted for 
consideration.  

 

Amendments 
 

2.8 None.  
 
3.0 Relevant Planning History (not the full site history) 

Page 53



 
3.1 14/00249/OL - Outline planning application (means of access submitted) 

for residential development and improvements to Highstairs Lane (Major 
Development) (Departure from Development Plan)(Additional 
Plans/Information) (S106 agreed) 

 
3.2 15/00910/FL - Application to vary condition 3 of 14/00249/OL regarding 

provision of affordable housing (Conditionally Approved) 
 
3.3 17/00768/RM - Approval of reserved matters (layout, scale, appearance 

and landscaping) for the erection of 28 dwellings pursuant to outline 
permission 15/00910/FL (Major Development) (Amended Plans) (Refused) 

 
3.4 18/00812/RM - Approval of reserved matters (layout and landscaping) for 

the erection of 28 dwellings pursuant to outline permission 15/00910/OL 
(Major Development)(Amended Plans) (Conditionally Approved)  

 
3.5 19/00501/DISCON - Application to discharge conditions 3 (Affordable 

Housing), 6  (Boundary Treatments), 7 (Samples), 8 (Ground Levels),  9 
(Landscaping Scheme) 13 (Schedule of Landscape Maintenance), 14 
(Surface Water drainage), 15 (Foul drainage works), 16 (Temporary 
Access), 17 (Site accommodation), 18 (Pedestrian Crossing) 19 (Highway 
improvement works) 20 (New Junction), 27 (Employment and Training), 28 
(Public Art),  29 (Sound Insulation and Noise Reduction) and 31 (Intrusive 
site investigation works) pursuant of 19/00943/FL (Amended 
Title) (Conditions Discharged)  

 
3.6 19/00601/AMEND - Non-material amendment to planning application 

18/00812/RM to reduce Chestnut home type roof pitch by 2.5 degrees, 
omit personnel doors from detached garages, clarify that Plot 14 is brick 
not stone, clarify first floor windows of Maples plot 2, 3 and 13 and define 
extents of ornamental string courses  (Approved) 

 
3.7 19/00943/FL – Application to vary condition 20 (visibility splays) of 

planning approval 15/00910/FL to formalise within highways impact 
statement. (Major Development)  (Conditionally Approved) 

 
3.8 20/01302/DISCON – Application to discharge condition 17 (Site 

Accommodation) pursuant to planning application 19/00943/FL (Condition 
Discharged)  

 
3.9 21/00621/FL – Application to vary S106 agreement and create 

Supplemental Deed to allow discounted affordable housing 
units (Approved) 

 

Page 54



3.10 22/00884/RM - S73 application to vary condition 1 (Approved Plans) of 
planning approval 18/00812/RM to vary the layout and landscaping details 
(Major Development) (Pending Consideration)  

  
4.0 Consultation Reponses  
 
4.1 Parish Council raised no comments. 
 
4.2 Ward Member called the application into committee for the reasons raised 

in section 1.1 above.  
 

4.3 Highways Authority (HA) As long as this proposal would not result in a 
change in parking and access arrangements to the site, the Highway 
Authority would not object to this proposal. I trust LPA will satisfy that the 
level of parking and access arrangement will stay the same. 

 
4.4 Environmental Health (EHO) no further comments.  
 
4.5 The Coal Authority raised no objections to this planning application and 

Condition 31 need not be duplicated on any reissued consent. 
 
4.6 Derbyshire Wildlife Trust (DWT) raised no comments. 
 
4.7 Yorkshire Water Authority (YWA) raised no comments. 
 
4.8 Council’s Drainage Engineer raised no comments.  
 
4.9 Council Housing Officer raised no comments. 
 
4.10 Employment and Skills Officer raised no comments. 
 
4.11 Council Tree Officer provided comments on the impact on the protected 

trees which are assessed in application 22/00884/RM.  
 
4.12 The Environment Agency (EA) did not request the planning condition the 

applicant is seeking to vary. We advise you seek the views of the 
consultee who requested the condition on the information submitted. 

 
4.13 Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Trust raised no 

comments. 
 
4.14 Council Parks Team raised no comments. 
 
4.15 Derbyshire Police (Designing Out Crime Officer) notes that application 

22/00884 is to vary the later approved matters of landscaping and layout, 
and that application 22/00885 is to vary the matters of appearance and 

Page 55



scale approved at an earlier time on appeal.  Don’t have any comments to 
make in respect of any of these matters, as all of the detail submitted is 
acceptable from a community safety perspective. 

 
On matters of administration. The site plan legend within 22/00884 has 
housing numbers which add to 32, not the 28 set out. There looks to be 
some anomalies with the mix and numbers to resolve. The house type 
plans listed within 22/00885 has the Bamburgh misspelt as Barnburgh, 
one Balmoral plan shown as a Barnard and one Richmond plan listed as a 
Warwick. [Officer note: amended plans to clarify the layout and proposed 
house types have been submitted for consideration] 

 
4.16 Councils Refuse Team raised no comments. 
 
4.17 Lead Local Flood Authority raised no comments. 
 
5.0 Representations  
 
5.1 The application was publicised by way of neighbour letters and the display 

of a site notices adjacent to the site. A site notice was placed adjacent to 
the site on a lamppost on Stretton Road, which expired on 9 December. 
An advert was also placed in the local press on 20 October and expired on 
10 November. 

 
5.2 1 local resident has made representations raising the following comments 

objecting to the proposed development: 
 

 Overall the size, scale, layout and density of the development has 
increased significantly [Officer note: This is considered in the 
assessment below] 

 The coverage of buildings on site has materially increased [Officer 
note: This is considered in the assessment below]  

 The size of the proposed dwellings has increased [Officer note: This is 
considered in the assessment below] 

 Increase in development will have negative impact on the roots of 
protected trees [Officer note: The Councils Tree Officer has reviewed 
the proposals on the trees and this is considered in the assessment 
below] 

 The agreed RPA previously approved is incorrect [Officer note: the 
RPA was agreed on the advice of a qualified arborist]  

 Windows on proposed dwellings will negatively impact existing 
residents [Officer note: The impact on neighbours is considered below] 

 Some houses are now 3 storey in scale – in previous appeals the 
Inspector stated that all dwellings should be 2 storey – the increase will 
negatively impact neighbours [Officer note: There are no 3 storey 

Page 56



dwellings proposed, it is however noted that the Durham house type 
has rooms in the roof space, this accounts for 6 dwellings]  

 Frosted windows omitted from plans [Officer note: Unclear which 
dwelling is of concern here but it is assumed the objector is referring to 
plot 7 which includes two upper floor bathroom windows which face 
south towards Prospect House. An assessment of these windows is 
considered below] 

 Previous appeal allows 2, 3 and 4 bed dwellings, this scheme now 
includes 5 bed dwellings [Officer note: The proposed scheme includes 
the Hampton (2 units) and Warwick (1 unit) house type which are 5 
bed dwellings. An assessment of this impact is considered below]    

 Inaccuracies and/or missing information: 
o Two site plans submitted, one labelled superseded [officer note: 

Drawing STRET-001 date scanned 14 October is the latest site 
plan that members should consider. The same plan dated 6 
September has been superseded. This is clearly labelled on the 
public access site and is retained for public scrutiny in the 
interest of transparency.]  

o Impossible to determine which house type relates to site plan 
[Officer note: The submitted site plan clearly illustrates how 
many of each house type and where each house type would be 
on site. It should be noted that the Balmoral and Richmond 
house types were submitted on 10 October so not with the 
original suite of plans.] 

o A number of versions of house types and properties which don’t 
relate to the site plan [Officer note: Unclear which house types 
are an issue here, but it could relate to the use of (OPP) on the 
plan. This refers to ‘handing’ or flipping the proposed house type 
and is clear to officer’s in assessing the proposal.] 

o Western boundary inaccurate [Officer note: The red line plan 
submitted is accurate and officer’s have no reason to believe 
this is inaccurate.] 

 Tree survey undertaken by John Booth has expired [Officer note: It is 
noted that the report by John Booth has expired, however the 
developer could build out the previously approved scheme in line with 
that approval. Nevertheless Officer’s have requested that the Councils 
Tree Officer review the proposal.]  

 Work has been underway on site for 6 weeks [Officer note: The 
developer is working to an extant permission and having visited the 
site is undertaking ground works and installing roadways.] 

 
6.0 Relevant Policy and Strategic Context 
 

North East Derbyshire Local Plan 2014-2034 (LP) 
 

Page 57



6.1 The following policies of the LP are material to the determination of this 
application:  

 
SS1 Sustainable Development 
SS2  Spatial Strategy and the Distribution of Development 
SS9 Development within the Countryside 
SDC2 Trees, Woodlands and hedgerows   
SDC3 Landscape Character   
SDC4  Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
SDC12 High Quality Design and Place making 
ID3 Sustainable Travel  

 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 
6.2 The overarching aims of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

have been considered in the assessment of this application.  
 
6.3 Essentially, proposals should ‘achieve well-designed places’ (chapter 12), 

‘make effective use of land’ (chapter 11) as well as ‘conserve and 
enhance the natural environment’ (chapter 15).    
 
Other Material Planning Considerations  
 

6.4 Successful Places Interim Planning Guidance, adopted December 2013 
 
7.0 Planning Issues 
 
 Principle of Development 

 
7.1 The principle of development on the site was established through the 

granting of outline planning permission 14/00249/OL and 15/00910/FL. A 
material start has been made on site so Officer’s consider that the 
planning permission remains extant. 
 
Main Issues 
 

7.2 The main material considerations with this application are the proposed 
changes to the scale and appearance details previously approved under 
application 17/00768/RM. The proposed changes are considered below.   
 
Scale Considerations  
 

7.3 Planning approval 17/00768/RM approved the scale of 28 dwellings linked 
to the outline approval 15/00910/OL. The previously approved scheme 
was proposed by a different developer to the one submitting this S73 
application and as such they have different house types they wish to use. 

Page 58



 
7.4 All the proposed house types are two storey in scale. A sample of three 

different house types (Bamburgh, Durham and Waterford) can be seen in 
Figure 2 below.  
 

7.5 Concern has been raised by a local resident to the overall size and scale 
of the proposed development having increased significantly from that 
previously approved. It is contended that some properties are now 3 
storeys in height and the scheme now includes 5 bed dwellings not 
previously approved. Comments are also put forward that the increased 
size of development will have a negative impact on protected trees and 
the agreed Root Protection Area (RPA).  
 

7.6 As discussed above, concern was raised that three storey properties 
would be used on site. However as can be seen in Figure 2 below, the 
only house type with rooms in the roof space is the Durham house type 
which is used on 6 plots. This is a two storey property with rooms in the 
roof space. Officer’s do not consider that this house type would differ 
materially from the previously approved scheme and it would complement 
the site and the surrounding street scene which is also predominantly two 
storey in appearance.   

 

              
Figure 2: Example house types (L-R, Bamburgh, Durham and Waterford) 

 
7.7 The applicant has undertaken a calculation of the proposed building 

heights compared to those previously approved. It is advised that the 
proposed scheme will be between 0.3-1m lower overall than the previously 
approved scheme. Officer’s have no reason to dispute this calculation. 
 

7.8 Further concern was raised at the use of 5 bedroom properties in the 
proposal. However, only the Hampton and Warwick house types, which 
account for 3 plots on site, would be 5 bedroom properties. The previous 
decision made no reference to restricting the number of bedrooms 
included in the allowed scheme and only considered the facts of the 
application in that the developer chose 2, 3 and 4 bedroom properties. 
Officer’s are of the opinion that the proposed inclusion of 3 x 5 bedroom 
properties will have no greater impact on the overall appearance of the 

Page 59



proposed development on the site and the character of the immediate 
area.  
 

7.9 The applicant has provided evidence that the proposed scheme would 
have approx. 7sqm of floor area over and above that previously approved 
under application 17/00768/RM, which represents a 0.3% increase in the 
overall building footprint. Officer’s note that the amended scheme has 
fewer garages and the scheme is a mix of two storey properties similar to 
that previously approved, as such Officer’s have no overriding concern at 
the limited increase in scale of the proposed development over and above 
that previously approved.   
 

7.10 Whilst concern is raised to the proposed development having a 
detrimental impact on the Root Protection Area (RPA) to the west, the 
Council’s Tree Officer and developer through the course of considering 
application 22/00884/RM have agreed a larger RPA, in the interest of 
these protected trees. The proposed development does not extend into 
this revised RPA and as such the Tree Officer has no objection, subject to 
conditions being included on any relevant permission to combat soil 
compaction, the removal of permitted development for works on Plots 1-7 
and retention of protective fencing.  
  

7.11 The County Council Highways Authority has raised no objection to the 
proposed scheme and as such Officer’s have no reason to consider that 
this proposal would give rise to highway safety concerns over and above 
the approved scheme.  
 

7.12 In view of the above, whilst Officer’s accept that the proposed 
development will be marginally greater in scale than that previously 
approved, it is not considered that the difference would be harmful to the 
overall character and appearance of the site and the surrounding area, nor 
would it have a severe impact on the surrounding road network.   
 
Appearance Considerations  
 

7.13 Planning approval 17/00768/RM approved the appearance of 28 dwellings 
linked to the outline approval 15/00910/OL. The previously approved 
scheme was proposed by a different developer to the one submitting this 
S73 application and as such they have different house types they wish to 
use. 
 

7.14 The previously approved scheme was a mix of feature render plots with 
the majority constructed from red brick. The proposed development will be 
a mix of two storey dwellings constructed from red brick and grey tile 
(Marley Ashmore). 4 brick options have been provided but no specific 
details as to which plots will be constructed from what material. No 

Page 60



reference is made to including feature materials for prominent units which 
will need to be addressed at a later date. As such Officer’s consider that a 
condition requiring the submission of a clear materials schedule should be 
included in any decision.  
 

7.15 As considered by the Inspector on the relevant appeal decisions for this 
site, the “existing residential development along Stretton Road varies 
considerably in its form, design, appearance and use of materials.” 
Officer’s are of the view that the use of red brick, feature rendered units 
and grey tile will complement the mixed surrounding street scene. 
Furthermore similar materials were considered acceptable on the 
previously approved scheme and as such it is considered acceptable on 
this proposed development.  
 

7.16 Concern has been raised by a local resident to the impact of windows on 
neighbouring residents from overlooking.  Whilst no specific information 
has been provided as to which plot this refers to Officer’s note that the 
majority of the proposed development would accord with the separation 
distances contained in the Councils Successful Places Interim Guidance.  
 

7.17 However Officer’s note that Plot 7 (as seen below in Figure 3) is set close 
to the boundary with Prospect House. Whilst Prospect House is in excess 
of 40m away from Plot 7 two upper floor windows would be close to the 
boundary of the site and have the potential for overlooking into the garden. 
These two windows serve bathrooms.  
 

  
Figure 3: Details of Plot 7 

7.18 On the previously approved scheme, a similar house type in this location 
included 1 upper floor bathroom window which was conditioned to be 
obscured in nature to avoid any loss of privacy at Prospect House. 
Furthermore, permitted development rights for no further first floor 
openings (unless they are obscured in nature), Juliet balconies or dormer 
windows being included in the roof was included in the decision. Officer’s 
consider that a similar condition can be included to ensure that the 
proposed bathroom windows are obscured in nature and that no further 

Page 61



additions to Plot 7 are allowed under permitted development rights in order 
to protect the future privacy and amenity of residents at Prospect House. 
 

7.19 Concern is also raised to potential views from upper floor, rear facing 
openings included in plots 4 and 5, along with the risk of overlooking from 
future works (such as inclusion of rear dormers, Velux windows, etc) on 
properties close to the western boundary. Officer’s note this concern but 
properties other than Plot 7 are set back a good distance from the 
boundary of the site in accord with the Councils Successful Places Interim 
Planning Guidance and any potential future views would be obscured by 
the mature tree band along this western boundary. As such Officer’s 
conclude that it would not be reasonable to remove permitted 
development for works in the roof on these plots in this instance.  
 

7.20 It is however noted that as recommended in respect of application 
22/00884/RM (see this Committee) Officer’s concluded that permitted 
development rights for extensions, outbuildings, hardstanding and means 
of enclosure for plots 1-7 should be restricted by way of an appropriate 
condition. This is in order to protect the trees along the western boundary.  
 

7.21 With regards to the privacy and amenity of future residents within the 
scheme Officer’s are satisfied that the proposed development would 
comply with the Council’s Successful Places Interim Planning Guidance 
and be acceptable in privacy and amenity terms, subject to condition 
requiring windows in Plot 7 being obscured in nature. 
 

7.22 Overall Officer’s are therefore satisfied that the appearance of the 
proposed development would be acceptable on the character and 
appearance of the surrounding street scene and not give rise to an 
unacceptable loss of privacy and amenity of existing and future residents.   
 
Other Considerations 

 
7.23 As part of the 2018 application a Unilateral Planning Obligation (UPO) was 

agreed in November 2019 between the previous developer and the 
Council. Included in this UPO was agreement to pay a contribution 
towards Affordable Housing. The applicant has confirmed that they are 
aware that this contribution will still be made to the Council.  
 

8.0 Summary and Conclusion 
 
8.1 The site already has an extant planning permission for 28 dwellings. This 

proposal seeks to amend the approved scale and appearance details.  
 

Page 62



8.2 Amendments to the previously approved scale and appearance details 
have been submitted to take into account the site being developed by a 
different housebuilder who inevitably have different house types.  
 

8.3 The proposal is broadly the same to that previously approved with subtle 
changes to the scale and appearance of the dwellings. Furthermore some 
garages are removed from the scheme and some dwellings now have 
rooms in the roof space.  
 

8.4 The scale and appearance of the dwellings now proposed, whilst differing 
from those previously approved, would be in keeping with the character 
and appearance of the site and the surrounding street scene.  
 

8.5 In addition, the proposed development would not, subject to conditions, 
give rise to an unacceptable loss of privacy and amenity of existing and 
future residents. 
 

8.6 There are no technical reasons to outweigh the above conclusions. 
 

8.7 Overall it is considered by Officer’s that the changes proposed to the 
layout and landscaping details would be acceptable and in conformity with 
the Development Plan and National Planning policy. 
 

9.0 Recommendation 
 
9.1 That planning permission is CONDITIONALLY APPROVED, with the final 

wording of the conditions delegated to the Planning Manager 
(Development Management):- 

 
 Conditions 
 

1) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans inso far as they relate to scale and 
appearance: 
 

 Site Location Plan: 2016-458 005A 

 Site Survey as Existing: 2016 - 458 006A; 

 STRET 002 - House Type Bamburgh 

 STRET 003 – House Type Bamburgh (V4) 

 STRET 004 - House Type Barnard 

 STRET 005 – House Type Balmoral 

 STRET 006 - House Type Canterbury 

 STRET 007 - House Type Durham 

 STRET 008 – House Type Winchester 

 STRET 009 – House Type Hampton 

 STRET 010 - House Type Richmond 

Page 63



 STRET 011 Rev A – House Type Warwick 

 STRET 012 – House Type Waterford 

 STRET 013 – House Type Garages  
 
[Reason: For clarity and the avoidance of doubt.] 
 

2) Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, (or 
any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order), no first floor rear 
facing windows, dormers in the roof or Juliet balconies shall be 
inserted into the rear elevation of plot 7, save for the windows shown 
on the approved drawing which shall have obscure glazing installed in 
order to provide a level of obscurity at least equivalent to levels 3, 4, or 
5 on the Pilkington Glass scale and the glazing shall be retained as 
such thereafter. 
 
[Reason: To ensure that the privacy and amenity of residents at 
Prospect House is respected, all in accordance with policy SDC12 of 
the North East Derbyshire Local Plan.] 
 

3) Notwithstanding the submitted details, before work commences above 
Damp Proof Course (DPC) precise specifications or samples of the 
walling and roofing materials to be used shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

 
[Reason: In the interest of the character and appearance of the site 
and the surrounding street scene, all in accordance with policies SS9 
and SDC12 of the North East Derbyshire Local Plan.] 
 
 

Page 64



 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20 DECEMBER 2022 

 
 

Reference Number: 21/01159/FLH  Application expiry: expired  
 
Application Type: Householder     
 
Proposal Description: Proposed second storey extension to create rooms in 
roof space and two storey extension to front (revised scheme of 21/00774/FLH) 
(Amended Plans) 
 
At: 20 Bents Crescent, Dronfield 
 
For: Mr Steven Kay 
 
Third Party Reps: 22 objections received from 10 local residents   
 
Parish: Dronfield    Ward: Coal Aston 
 
Report Author: Graeme Cooper  Date of Report: November 2022  
 
MAIN RECOMMENDATION:  Grant permission, subject to conditions 
  

 
Figure 1: Location plan, with site edged in red 

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



1.0 Reason for Report 
 
1.1 Cllr Foster requested that the application be considered by members of 

planning committee due to the impact of development on the surrounding 
street scene, the negative impact on neighbouring privacy and lack of 
notices/consultation with neighbours.  
 

1.2 The above request was made out of time, so agreement with Chair of 
Planning Committee was required. The late call in request was allowed 
and as such is being considered by members of planning committee.   
 
 

2.0 Proposal and Background 
 
 Site Description 
 
2.1 The application property is a detached bungalow with a single storey rear 

extension set well down from the highway in a row of similar properties. 
 

2.2 The properties immediately opposite the application site are two storey 
dwellings, whereas those to the rear on Holmesdale Close are similar 
bungalows: the land sloping steeply down from north to south. 
 

2.3 Properties either side of the application site are hipped bungalows, with 
number 22 having a boxed dormer on its roof, as seen in the photo below.  
 

  
Figure 2: Photo taken from Bents Crescent 

 
2.4 The application site is located in the Settlement Development Limit for 

Dronfield.  
 

 Proposal  
 

2.5 The proposal is to raise the eaves and ridge height of the dwelling by 
0.7m. Side facing box dormer windows are proposed to create rooms in 

Page 66



the roof space and a front extension is proposed to infill a front portion of 
the dwelling.  
 

2.6 The additional accommodation provided would comprise an extended 
bedroom at ground floor level with an additional bedroom, en-suite 
bathroom and new living room at first floor level. 
 
Amendments 
 

2.7 Amended plans were submitted to take into account neighbour concerns, 
officer comments and to include biodiversity enhancements. Essentially 
the changes include the removal of 3 windows in the first floor dormer 
sides, obscure glazing and inclusion of a Manthorpe swift brick to the front 
elevation.  
 

2.8 Due to a drafting error on the amended plans illustrating too many 
openings on the proposed floor plan clarifying plans were submitted on 28 
October. 
 

2.9 The latest amended front, rear and side elevations can be found below in 
Figure 3 and 4.  

 

 

Page 67



 
Figure 3: Existing and Proposed Front and Rear Elevations 

  
Figure 4: Existing and proposed side elevations (east left, west right) 

 
3.0 Relevant Planning History (not the full site history) 
 
3.1 21/00774/FLH - proposed raising of roof height to create two-storey 

dwelling and incorporating a two-storey front extension - Refused 
 
 
4.0 Consultation Reponses  
 
4.1 Parish Council no comments.   
 
4.2 Ward Member requested that the application be considered by planning 

committee due to the impact of development on the surrounding street 
scene, the negative impact on neighbouring privacy and lack of 
notices/consultation with neighbours. 
 

Page 68



4.3 Highways Authority (HA) no objections subject to no loss of parking. 
 
4.4 Derbyshire Wildlife Trust (DWT) reviewed the submitted Bat Survey 

Report (Helen Hamilton Ecology, 2022) and although the nocturnal 
surveys were completed during the end of the survey season, we consider 
the conditions to be suitable and the report is in line with Good Practice 
Guidelines (Collins, 2016). No bats were observed to emerge from 20 
Bents Crescent, and no further surveys regarding bats is considered 
necessary. Therefore, bats should not present a constraint on this 
development. 

 
4.5 DWT advise that sufficient information regarding bats has been submitted 

to enable the Local Planning Authority to reach an informed decision in 
accordance with Circular 06/2005 and to discharge its duty in respect of 
the requirements of The Conservation of Habitats and Species 
(Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019. If the council is minded to 
achieve a net gain for biodiversity a suitably worded condition is 
recommended to cover bird and bat box mitigation. 

 
 
5.0 Representations 
 
5.1 The application was originally publicised by way of neighbour letters and 

the display of a site notice adjacent to the site. A site notice was placed 
adjacent to the site on a lamp post, which expired on 12 November 2021.   

 
5.2 Following the receipt of amended plans a further 14 day consultation 

period, in line with the Councils Statement of Community Involvement, 
was undertaken with neighbours and objectors. This consultation period 
ended on 9 November 2022.   

 
5.3 A number of local residents made representations raising the following 

comments objecting to the proposed development (in summary):- 
 

 The revised application differs little from the previously refused 
application [Officer note: the previously refused scheme was for a 
second storey and refused under delegated powers] 

 The proposal would not be in keeping with the rest of the row of 
bungalows [Officer note: this is covered in the assessment below] 

 Potential overlooking from dormer windows and loss of privacy [Officer 
note: this is covered in the assessment below] 

 The unbroken flat roof dormers will appear ugly and out of character 
[Officer note: this is covered in the assessment below] 

 The open platform from the Juliette balcony will allow overlooking and 
loss of privacy [Officer note: this is covered in the assessment below] 

Page 69



 The plans do not show any pipework relating to the new first floor 
bathroom 

 Two-storey front extension will result in overshadowing and loss of 
natural daylight and warmth [Officer note: this is covered in the 
assessment below] 

 The construction works would result in partial closure of a busy 
thoroughfare [Officer note: the relevant permission of the Highways 
Authority would be required to close any public road.] 

 There was a delay in the displaying of the site notice reducing the 
amount of time for persons to comment [Officer note: the site notice 
was displayed by the case officer with dates altered to allow a 21 days 
consultation period] 

 The applicant’s property may contain asbestos [Officer note: this would 
be covered by separate legislation] 

 The location plan submitted with the application is incorrect and shows 
Bents Road in Sheffield [Officer note: the application was invalidated 
and the corrected application re-consulted] 

 Potential impact of proposal on drainage 

 Increased potential for noise pollution from first floor accommodation 
[Officer note: this would be covered by separate legislation] 

 The proposed extension has an excessive amount of glass and does 
not comply with current standards on energy efficiency [Officer note: 
energy efficiency is not a material consideration] 

 
5.4 Further objections were received to the amended plans, raising the 

following material points (in summary): 
 

 Resulting dwelling would still be prominent in the street scene  

 Proposal will have overbearing impact on neighbours, as a result of its 
overall massing, particular to those residents on Holmesdale Close 
due to changes in levels 

 Amended scheme would still result in overlooking from side and rear 
upper floor windows 

 Visual intrusion and loss of natural light  

 Overlooking towards properties on Holmesdale Close due to elevated 
position of the proposed dwelling [Officer note: the above points are 
covered in the assessment below] 

 No electric car charging point [Officer note: there is no requirement for 
householder applications to make requirements for car charging points] 

 Request for more time to respond [Officer note: the consultation 
periods set out in the Statement of Community Involvement have been 
adhered to, in this case an initial 21 days, then a further 14 days for 
amended plans] 

 Concern that not all residents have been consulted [Officer note: for 
clarity numbers 14, 16, 18, 22 and 25 Bents Crescent and 5, 7, 9 and 

Page 70



11 Holmesdale Close have been consulted on both original and 
amended plans] 

 Plans being rushed through [Officer note: initial consultation period is 
21 days, with amended plans being consulted for 14 days] 

 Development would not preserve the character of the area. 

 Development will impact road network 

 Two windows in side elevation [facing No 18] are unnecessary and 
should be removed 

 The applicant should consider amending the scheme in line with 
neighbour comments [Officer note: the applicant has already made 
several amendments to the scheme in an attempt to satisfy objectors 
and officer comments. No further amendments submitted.]  

 
 
6.0 Relevant Policy and Strategic Context 
 

North East Derbyshire Local Plan 2014-2034 (LP) 
 
6.1 The following policies of the LP are material to the determination of this 

application:  
 

SS7 (Development within Settlements) 
LC5 (Residential Extensions) 
SDC4 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity) 
SDC12 (High Quality Design and Place Making) 
 
Dronfield Neighbourhood Plan (DNP) 

 
6.2 The Dronfield Neighbourhood Plan (DNP) has been accepted at 

referendum and the District Council adopted the Plan on 5 November 
2019. The relevant policies should therefore carry weight in any decision: 

 
 D3 (Good Design) 
 ENV4 (Ecology)  

 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 
6.3 The overarching aims of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

have been considered in the assessment of this application.  
 

Other Material Planning Considerations  
 

6.4 Successful Places Interim Planning Guidance, adopted December 2013. 
 
  
7.0 Planning Issues 

Page 71



 
 Principle of Development 
 
7.1 The applicant’s property is located within the defined settlement 

development limit for Dronfield where domestic development is acceptable 
in principle. 
 
Impact on Street Scene 
 

7.2 Adopted Local Plan Policy LC5 requires that domestic extensions should 
be in keeping with the existing property and street scene in terms of their 
style, proportion and materials and should avoid significant loss of privacy 
and amenity for neighbouring residents.  
 

7.3 Policy D3 of the Dronfield Neighbourhood Plan (DNP) states that 
proposals must respond positively to the character and historic context of 
existing developments within the town. However, contemporary and 
innovative materials and design will be supported where positive 
improvement can be robustly demonstrated without detracting from the 
historic context. Proposals must reflect the design principles listed in the 
policy, including reflecting the building character of the area and using 
appropriate materials. 
 

7.4 The proposed development would involve the raising of the eaves and 
ridge by 0.7m, creation of front and rear gables and two side dormer 
windows. The proposed dormers would be set down from the newly 
formed ridgeline and be constructed from hanging tiles to match the 
existing house.  

 
7.5 The surrounding street scene is a mix of bungalows and semi-detached 

properties. The properties on the south side of Bents Crescent are single 
storey in nature and set down from the road. These properties are 
predominantly hipped with some having projecting pitched roof gables. On 
the north side of Bents Crescent are two storey semi-detached properties 
which are set in an elevated position. To add to this, the neighbouring 
property (number 22) has a boxed dormer perched above the ridgeline. 
 

7.6 In view of the mixed street scene, Officer’s consider that the proposed 
extension would be of an acceptable style, proportion and materials which 
would complement the mixed surrounding street scene.   
 
Impact on Neighbour Amenity and Privacy 
 

7.7 Local Plan Policy LC5 requires development to avoid significant loss of 
privacy and amenity for the residents of neighbouring properties.  
 

Page 72



7.8 In terms of the impact on the privacy and amenity of neighbouring 
residents the properties most likely to be impacted by the development are 
those immediately adjacent to the application site.  
 

7.9 The proposal includes raising the eaves and ridge by 0.7m, introducing 
side facing dormers and the creation of front and rear gables. The 
proposal includes 2 west facing first floor windows that would serve a 
bathroom and secondary window to a bedroom. To the eastern elevation 2 
further windows are proposed serving a bedroom and stairwell. All 4 upper 
floor windows are identified as being obscured in nature with only high 
level openings. In order to protect the privacy and amenity of neighbouring 
residents it is considered that these windows can be obscure in nature 
accordingly with a suitable worded condition.  
 

7.10 In addition to the proposed side facing windows, the amended scheme 
includes front and rear facing gable windows. The opening to the rear 
being a more substantial 4 pane full height opening with Juliet balcony. 
These openings will allow views to the north and south of the application 
site. Views north would be across a public road, with views south towards 
properties on Holmesdale Close. These properties to the south are in 
excess of 28m away, it is however appreciated that these properties are 
much lower than the application site. The minimum separation distance 
between two rear elevations is 21m and is set out in the Councils 
Successful Places Interim Planning Guidance, however this distance has 
to take into account any changes in levels between the two properties and 
is guidance only. Having reviewed this relationship, Officer’s consider that 
this relationship would not result in significantly harmful overlooking 
impacting neighbouring residents’ privacy.  
 

7.11 Whilst it is accepted that the proposal will increase the overall bulk of the 
property, Officer’s do not consider that the resulting massing would have 
an overbearing impact on neighbouring residents.  

 
7.12 Concern has also been raised at the proposed Juliet balcony opening out 

onto a flat roof area which could potentially be used as a permanent 
balcony. The applicant has confirmed that this is not the case, regardless 
officer’s consider that a condition can be included in any decision to 
confirm that permission would be required to use this space as an outdoor 
seating/balcony area as its use as a balcony has not been assessed 
during the course of this application.   

 
Highway Safety Considerations  
 

7.13 The proposal would have no impact on the level of parking on site and the 
highways authority have raised no direct concerns, subject to there being 
no loss of overall parking on site. As such it is not considered that the 

Page 73



proposed development would result in an unacceptable impact on highway 
safety.   
 
Ecological Considerations  

 
7.14 Following concerns being raised by local residents to the potential 

presence of bats on site, a Bat Survey Report, prepared by Helen 
Hamilton Ecology dated September 2022 was submitted in support of the 
application.  
 

7.15 Derbyshire Wildlife Trust (DWT) reviewed the submitted report and 
concluded that bats should not present a constraint on the proposed 
development and subject to a condition requiring biodiversity 
enhancement including 1 integrated or external bat box and 1 integrated 
Swift brick there is no objection from DWT.  
 

7.16 The amended plans illustrate the inclusion of a Swift brick to the front 
elevation of the dwelling. No bat mitigation is proposed, but given no bats 
were observed Officer’s do not consider it prudent to require such 
mitigation, furthermore there appears limited opportunity to provide such 
measures on site.  
 

7.17 In view of the above, Officer’s are minded to conclude that the proposed 
mitigation measures are acceptable in this instance. A condition can be 
included to ensure that the swift brick is installed and retained as such in 
perpetuity. 
 

8.0 Summary and Conclusion 
 
8.1 Overall Officer’s conclude that the proposed development would be in 

keeping with the style, proportion and materials of the surrounding street 
scene, would safeguard the privacy and amenity of neighbouring 
residents, would not give rise to highway safety concerns and would 
provide some ecological mitigation.  
 

8.2 As such Officer’s consider that the proposal conforms with the 
Development Plan, Dronfield Neighbourhood Plan and National Planning 
Policy Framework and should be conditional approved.  
 
 

9.0 Recommendation 
 
9.1 That planning permission is CONDITIONALLY APPROVED, with the final 

wording and content of the conditions delegated to the Planning Manager 
(Development Management): 

 

Page 74



 Conditions 
 

1) The development hereby permitted shall be started within 3 years from 
the date of this permission. 
 
[Reason: To comply with the provision of Section 91 (as amended) of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.] 

 
2) The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance 

with the details shown on the following drawings:  
 

 Amended First Floor Plan (date scanned 28th October 2022) 

 Amended Front Elevation Plan (date scanned 28th October 2022) 

 Amended Rear Elevation Plan (date scanned 28th October 2022) 

 Amended Existing and Proposed Ground Floor Plan (date scanned 
26th October 2022) 

 Amended Side Elevation A (east) Plan (date scanned 26th October 
2022) 

 Amended Side Elevation B (west) Plan (date scanned 26th October 
2022) 

 Location and Block Plan (date scanned 19th October 2022) 
 
unless otherwise subsequently agreed through a formal submission 
under the Non Material Amendment procedures and unless otherwise 
required by any condition contained in this decision notice. 
 
[Reason: For clarity and the avoidance of doubt.] 

 
3) The proposed materials shall match those of the existing building as 

closely as possible. 
 
[Reason: In the interests of the appearance of the area and in 
accordance with policies SS7 and LC5 of the North East Derbyshire 
Local Plan and policy D3 of the Dronfield Neighbourhood Plan.] 
 

4) The bat and bird mitigation measures illustrated on the approved plans 
shall be incorporated in full prior to the first use of the first floor 
extension and retained as approved thereafter.   
 
[Reason: In the interest of providing ecological mitigation measures, in 
accordance with policy SDC4 of the North East Derbyshire Local Plan 
and ENV4 of the Dronfield Neighbourhood Plan.] 
 

5) The flat roof above the exiting kitchen to the rear of the property shall 
not be used as a raised platform or balcony. 
 

Page 75



[Reason: For clarity and the avoidance of doubt.] 
 

6) Prior to the first use of the first floor extension hereby approved, the 
windows serving a bedroom, landing and bathroom in the first floor 
east and west elevations of the dwelling shall be fitted with obscure 
glazing. The obscure glazing shall be of an obscurity equivalent to at 
least Level 4 of the Pilkington obscure glazing range. The windows 
shall be of a non-opening design or alternatively any opening parts 
must be more than 1.7m above the floor level of the room in which the 
window is installed. The windows shall then be retained as such 
thereafter at all times. 
  
[Reason: To protect the privacy and amenity of neighbouring residents 
at numbers 18 and 22 Bents Crescent, Dronfield.] 
 

Page 76



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

Planning Committee 20th December 2022 

SUMMARY OF LATE COMMENTS/REPORT UPDATE 

The aim of this report is to seek to avoid the need for lengthy verbal updates that 

Planning Officers have sometimes needed to provide in the past at the Planning 

Committee. In consultation with the Chair, it has been decided that on the evening 

before committee a summary of all the late comments/representations received so far 

will be emailed to the Committee Members by the Governance Team. 

It is possible that verbal updates will still be required at the meeting as sometimes 

comments are received at the last minute or Officers may wish to amend their 

recommendations: however Officers will seek to keep verbal updates to a minimum. 

At the meeting Officers will only refer briefly to any key points of the case in the 

summary that has been emailed, as well as providing the usual verbal update for any 

additional last minute items.  

If Members have any queries about the comments or the application itself please feel 

free to contact the relevant case officer given beneath the title of each summary below. 

 

PARISH: Stretton 

APPLICATION:  22/00884/RM 

CASE OFFICER: Graeme Cooper 

1. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Email from agent 

DATE RECEIVED: 8 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

An updated Soft Landscaping Plan has been submitted (Drawing ref: GL0779 03A) 

to address the comments of the Derbyshire Wildlife Trust (DWT).  

OFFICER COMMENTS:  

This plan has been submitted to address the comments of DWT in providing additional 

bird and bat mitigation and replacing a laurel with a native hedgerow. Bat and bird 

boxes are now illustrated on plots along the northern boundary of the site. A laurel 

hedge along Highstairs Lane has been replaced with a mixed native species hedgerow 

in line with DWT comments.  

Condition 1 should be amended to read: 

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

1) “The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with 
the details shown on the following drawings unless otherwise subsequently 
agreed through a formal submission under the Non Material Amendment 
procedures and unless otherwise required by any condition contained in this 
decision notice: 

 

 STRET – 001 - proposed site plan; date scanned 14.10.22 

 2016-458 005 rev A - Site location plan 

 2016-458 045 rev E - Hedge Translocation 

 2016-458 014 rev G - Refuse Collection Scheme 

 GL0779 - Hedge translocation Method Statement rev A 

 GL0779 - Landscape Management Plan rev D 

 GL0779 03A - Soft Landscaping Plan 

 Highstairs Lane, Stretton - Mitigation Measures rev 1 

 JH_TPP1/1 (Protective Fencing Plan); date scanned 05.12.22 

 Scheme for mitigating climate change 
 

2. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Derbyshire Wildlife Trust (DWT 

DATE RECEIVED: 15 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

Great to see the hedge replaced with a mixed native hedge and an increase in bat 

and bird boxes. If there is any scope to swap the proposed wooden bird boxes for 

integral universal nest brisk it would be even better and closer to the British Standard 

for integral boxes.  However, I appreciate that there is already an approved scheme 

and that no reference was made to the BS previously. 

OFFICER COMMENTS:  

It is not considered that these comments alter the recommendation made to 

members.  

 

3. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Email from agent  

DATE RECEIVED: 14 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

In addition an updated Proposed Layout: Protective Fencing Plan (drawing 

JH_TPP1/1) has been submitted to correct a labelling issue with the scale. The 

original label notes it is 1:400 but it is actually 1:500.  

 

Page 78



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

OFFICER COMMENTS:  

The replacement Proposed Layout: Protective Fencing Plan corrects an annotation 

issue. The initial plan illustrated this as 1:400 but on inspection of the scale bar and 

annotations on the plan it is actually 1:500. This has no impact on the overall scheme 

or on neighbours and has purely been submitted as a matter of clarity. 

  

4. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Neighbour comments - Harries 

DATE RECEIVED: 16 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

Thanks for your response.  I am surprised you don’t have a policy or procedure for 

such important matters but your email confirms my why the applications should be 

delayed for review at a later planning meeting rather than at next week’s meeting. 

I notice today even more updated drawings have been released even though we 

now only have 1.5 working days to review prior to the meeting!  I wonder how long 

these have been in planning officers control?  How will they be reviewed prior to the 

meeting? 

It seems this will come down to your professional opinion of whether an officer has 

acted as soon as possible/practicable in publishing information.  Please consider the 

tree officer information was reviewed by the officer for the planning report that was 

issued before the information was even on the planning portal to allow 

comments.  The information was in planning officers control for at least 1 week prior 

to publishing.  Practically and feasible this was possible to publish but it didn’t 

happen?  

I appreciate your comment of requesting the committee to make a decision on 

deferral, but you must realise members of the public have to take time off work and 

miss work and personal matters to attend these meetings.  We therefore now have 

the chance of doubling this time and having to attend 2 meetings.  This can all be 

mitigated if you do the correct thing and make the right managerial decision. 

Please also confirm all the developer information is now displayed so we can review 

and submit further comments? 

OFFICER COMMENTS:  

The neighbour refers to a number of plans uploaded on 13th and 15th December. The 

plans submitted cover updated landscaping details which take into account the 

comments of DWT and an updated Proposed Layout, Protective Fence Plan which 

corrects the scale of the drawing only. These plans have no overall impact on the 

proposed development.  

Page 79



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

Comments received by the Councils Tree Officer were considered in the drafting of 

the committee report to members and were published online in a timely manner. 

Officers are not aware of any good reason to delay determination of an application. 

 

5. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Neighbour comments - Harries 

DATE RECEIVED: 19 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

I am writing to submit my objection to the discharge of conditions for application 

22/00884/RM - S73 application to vary condition 1 (Approved Plans) of planning 

approval 18/00812/RM to vary the layout and landscaping details (Major 

Development) and 2200885RM - S73 application to vary condition 1 (Approved Plans) 

of planning approval 1700768RM to vary the scale and appearance details (Major 

Development). As the developer has stated in their Planning Statements these 

applications should be considered together.  

I have written to you previously to explain my serious concerns over the accuracy of 

information submitted by the developer and used by the Planning officer. I am hopeful 

that you prior to the meeting or committee members prior to objector speeches will 

recognise the issues with this application and agree to defer it to a later meeting 

however I felt it important to contact you with supporting information in addition to the 

errors as to why both applications should be rejected.  

I also wish to highlight that information regarding this application has been added to 

the planning portal at very late stages and not allowing suitable timescale for response. 

Files were still being added on the 15th December which gave only 2 working days for 

comments to be submitted. Undeniably this is not a fair and transparent process and 

again only serves to benefit the developer. 

I feel it important to clarify my position as a direct neighbour to the development site 

and that I understand that the development is already progressing, and rejection of 

these proposals does not stop that. It is however essential that changes to the 

development that have significant impact on a number of material considerations are 

given full and fair consideration. This is a perfect opportunity to remove historical 

issues with this site. As a self-proclaimed local respectable developer, I am surprised 

they are resistant to this. I have heard from the Planning officer how the developer is 

keen to progress this application without delay, but the residents of Stretton deserve 

for all aspects impacted to be considered and where necessary changed or suitable 

steps implemented. I feel there are numerous aspects which could be amended to 

minimise the impact of these changes and that to simply dismiss the changes as minor 

is a major disservice to local residents by the planning process. Robust and suitable 

planning conditions allow for enforcement of rules in future and provide protection. I 

Page 80



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

note that the developer breached a number of planning conditions already in place to 

protect trees under a TPO within the first weeks that they started work. This behaviour 

should be given consideration in the process. 

In this letter I wish to provide an overview of my specific concerns to assist in the 

committee’s consideration and provide a balance to the information within the Planning 

Officers report. These applications should be rejected based on their impact on scale, 

appearance, layout and landscaping where the impacts of the proposed changes are 

significant and have not been considered. By approving these changes you will be 

approving a drastically different scheme which impacts the surrounding environment 

and residents of Stretton. 

Increase in bedrooms across the site  

9 properties out of the 28 properties on the site have an increase in the number of 

bedrooms which is 32% of properties. The total number of bedrooms increases from 

94 to 103, this is a 10% increase in size. To accommodate this these homes are 

significantly larger in their stature, but this also highlights impacts on the use of the 

development. The previous scheme had no 5 bedroom properties. Larger homes with 

more residents leads to impacts on considerations on traffic movements, parking 

facilities. None of this has been considered or any issues mitigated. The outline 

permission required 40% affordable homes to be built on site and the fact that this was 

reduced to only 12% and now a developer is permitted to build more larger homes 

which will sell for a greater profit is ridiculous. Providing affordable housing was part 

of the basis that this development was originally approved. This seems to be long 

forgotten now and I hope that the committee will recognise this. 

The building coverage on the site has significantly increased  

The developer has been creative in trying to hide the increase in size and scale of the 

increase. The simple comparison on increase in bedrooms shows the scale as the 

bedrooms require extra space. The houses are significantly bigger. Plot 7 as an 

example has an increased width of 27% and a total 20% on its total footprint. The 

significant change is in the aesthetics of the development, to allow for the increase in 

bedrooms the first-floor occupation of the site is 15% larger. This results in the amenity 

value of the development diminishing. The existing approved plans have a good 

design with separate garages to allow light to pass between the buildings. The 

Meadowview increased houses are now in effect a wall of properties. The building 

footprints in total cover 70m2 more than the previously approved scheme which is a 

6% increase. Not the inaccurate hand scribbled attempt of not showing an increase 

the developer has submitted. The change in the building types impacts the layout of 

the site as a result due to the increased scale and size of the buildings. Every side of 

the development has increased in size with the largest being 17% more buildings than 

in the previous design at first floor level.  

Page 81



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

With regards to plot 7 the developer has offered to reduce this property inline with the 

original approved scheme which is welcomed but should be combined by adjusting 

the location of the garage would help to mitigate risks to the trees due to the 

encroachment into the RPA. 

Increase in three storey living spaces  

6 of the 28 properties on the development in the proposed application now have 3 

storey living spaces. This is an increase of 22% which is significant. The fact that the 

previous scheme had no 3 storey properties only goes to again emphasise that this 

new scheme is significantly different in scale and none of the impacts of this have been 

taken into consideration. This will again result in larger families, increased vehicles, 

pressure on parking none of which have been given any consideration in this 

application. The increase in the number of three storey properties in conjunction with 

the increase in bedrooms just again demonstrates the increased profit to the developer 

due to the expected selling price of homes of this scale. I note that Meadowview homes 

have marketed 5 bedroom homes in Derbyshire for in the region of £600,000. 

Increase in window number and locations  

The larger homes are so significantly different in size that they have an increased 

number of windows. This has not been considered within the application despite an 

increase in numerous properties and impacting on the privacy and amenity value of 

existing residents of Stretton. To take a specific example to illustrate this point the 

original Wildgoose design at plot 1 was Hornbeam. This property had 13 windows. 

The proposed Meadowview homes of Bamburgh has 16 windows, a 23% increase. 

This varies depending which drawing is referred to on the website and there is no clear 

document control to show which drawing is live. The Bamburgh property has an 

increase in the number of first floor windows in the side elevation which overlooks 

properties Greenend and Moorfields on Highstairs lane. Again this has not been 

considered and no mitigation put in place. Do residents of Stretton not deserve to be 

protected from invasion of their privacy? Clearly the needs of the developer have again 

been put above residents and even worse these changes have been hidden.  

With regards to windows condition 2 of 18/00812/RM for frosted windows in property 

7 has been breached by removing this requirement. Again a blatant disregard for 

mitigation steps put in place to protect existing residents by the developer or is it yet 

another mistake in the information submitted? 

Visual impact of the development  

The changes submitted by the developer will result in a development which appears 

drastically different in its appearance than the existing approved scheme. This has not 

been considered within the application and again suggests that the developer is trying 

to use the planning process to drive through major changes that if present at an earlier 

stage would have resulted in the rejection of the application. The significantly larger 

Page 82



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

properties as already described will result in large banks of properties allowing for less 

light on the site and to neighbouring properties. The previous housing types had 

undulating lower rooflines from garages and allowed for a more open aspect to the 

development. The visual impact on site boundaries increases up to 17% at first floor 

and roof level in linear meters due to the bigger properties. It’s very easy to gloss over 

these changes and determine them as minor when you look at each little change in 

isolation but the committee needs to understand the collective impact of the changes. 

This sadly has not been considered by the developer or within the planning officers 

report. 

Impact of increased scale on protected trees  

This has not been considered within the application. By continuing to dismiss the 

changes in this application as not significant the trees are being put at risk. As I write 

to you today I have not yet received or seen the tree survey published that was carried 

out by the council tree officer David Cunningham on my property on 28th November. 

From reading the planning officers report it would seem that this has been shared with 

him and the developer and he has been able to extract the information he requires to 

make his comments. Sadly, this opportunity has not been provided for any residents 

or other consultees showing yet again the bias towards supporting the needs of the 

developer.  

During the council tree officers visit it was confirmed with him and Planning Officer Mr 

Cooper that there significant errors in the measurements used within the report by 

John Booth whose tree survey was used in the approval of the existing approved 

scheme. We were so pleased that finally this error had finally been acknowledged. 

The John Booth report required that the Root Protection Area of each tree would be 

identified by grouping trees together and using the largest measurement within the 

group. This method ensures that the maximum extent of the roots is identified and as 

a result can be given suitable protection. Now that the correct measurements have 

been collected and can be used to calculate and draw the RPA we felt more confident 

that the trees would be protected. This includes the RPA fencing being erected and 

not moved during the duration of the build and any disturbance of the ground within 

the RPA would be carried out with and tools only. This was all approved within the 

existing scheme. 

As I write to you today however, I have serious concerns over fairness and 

transparency following the completion of the site visit. On reading the recently 

published officers report it is evident that he and the developer have reviewed the tree 

report. The Planning officers report includes some very vague statements which I wish 

to highlight in the letter given I have not been able to review the findings in full. Mr 

Cooper refers to a “previous report that had chosen to group some trees”. This report 

was the approved report paid for by the council and is directly referenced in the existing 

approval. Mr Coopers report fails to identify that the RPA calculated by David 

Cunningham uses an alternative method to that in the approved scheme. This is a 

Page 83



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

critical deviation that has a significant impact. If the John Booth approved methodology 

is used then buildings do encroach on the RPA of protected trees at plot 6 and 7. It 

seems that the lack of openness in the process has served to hide this fact. This in 

fact should be an opportunity to amend plans in the layout of the site to ensure that 

the RPA is fully protected for both the longevity of the trees but also the safety of 

buildings on the site. The impact in the different methodologies and impact on the 

development were discussed at length during the site visit yet seem to have been 

glossed over in the officers report. If the methodology for determining the RPA of 

protected trees has changed why has this not been published and clearly explained 

what the differences are. Such a significant change has been made with serious 

implications and yet the Planning officer does not feel the need to publish the tree 

officers report prior to consideration by the committee. Again, hiding information and 

trying to push an approval through as quickly as possible. 

Accuracy of data submitted  

The site plan shows the name of each house type to be built. However, there are 

multiple drawings of the same house type with different characteristics which obviously 

would impact on the consideration by the committee. In the officers report they have 

disregarded this. I wish to demonstrate the impact of this inaccuracy. Multiple drawings 

have been uploaded to the planning portal named “Plans & Elevations House Type 

Barnard” and “Plans & Elevations House Type Barnard A3”. One shows a large 

detached house (Stett 005) and one shows a row of three terraced houses (Strett 004). 

All drawings confusingly have a revision date of August 2022 and were updated onto 

the planning portal on 6th September. It is not possible to identify which drawing is 

correct. Clearly there has been an error that needs to be rectified. As a committee you 

are expected to give this application a fair and accurate review. I would consider that 

any comments provided by consultees up this point are also not to be considered as 

they are based on completely flawed information.  

Further to this issue on reviewing property type Balmoral and Barnard these two 

properties have identical designs as shown within the documents on the planning 

portal dated 6th September. They also have the same document reference Strett 005 

revision date August 2022. Which property is which? Or are they the same? Is it for 

the committee or the planners to try and decipher this poor document control from a 

developer? Any attempt to try and make sense of this mess would be based on an 

assumption or a guess. It is not clear and therefore must not be used for the basis of 

a decision on this matter by the committee. Calculations on size scale cannot be done 

with this conflicting information – assumptions cannot be made. These matters are too 

important to allow this to happen. 

Breaches of Conditions  

In the short period of time the developer has been working on site there has been a 

number of conditions breached from the previously approved plans. Planning 

Page 84



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

enforcement have attended site a number of times and taken action against the 

developer. The conditions breached are:  

1. No RPA fence erected  

2. Excavators working within the RPA.  

3. RPA fence erected incorrectly and in the wrong place.  

4. All documented and corrected by planning enforcement.  

5. Breached approval of condition 17 on the site compound.  

Summary  

As you can see from the information above and the appendices below there are 

significant errors in the developer’s plans for this site. This application should be 

rejected and the developer then has the opportunity to design our the flaws. 

Appendix 1-7 are available to view online as some of the text which follows is too small 

to read: 

Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

Appendix 2 

 

Appendix 3 

 

 

Page 86



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

Appendix 4  

 

Appendix 5  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

Appendix 6  

 

Appendix 7  

 

 

Page 88



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

  

  

 

 

Page 89



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

Appendix 8 

 

 

OFFICER COMMENTS:  

Documents added online do not impact upon the ability of members to determine the 

application.  

Increase in bedrooms – it is correct some properties now have more bedrooms, but 

the overall feel of the scheme before members is still for 28 dwellings and no objection 

has been received from any statutory consultee that this increase would be harmful. 

Furthermore in officer’s opinion the proposal would still be in keeping with the 

surrounding mixed street scene. Matters of affordable housing are not relevant to this 

proposal for the determination of the reserved matters. 

Building coverage - the type and mix of properties are different to those previously 

approved, part of the reason for this application being submitted to the LPA. The 

example in relation to plot 7 is noted, but the objector’s comments are rather 

misleading. The width, when considering the two storey element only, has increased 

by approx. 19% not 27%. With regards to plot 7, when assessing the overall mass 

facing west towards Prospect House you have to consider the width and height. 

Officers have calculated that the overall mass on this elevation is approx. 10% larger. 

Regardless of the changes, officers agree the proposed development is different to 

that previously approved but just because some properties are bigger is not a reason 

that makes development unacceptable.  Officer’s do not consider that these changes 

from the previously approved scheme are significantly different that would justify 

refusal of the scheme before members.  

Page 90



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

Increase in three storey living spaces – officer’s can confirm that 6 dwellings, the 

Durham house type, now include rooms in the roof space. Officers do not consider 

that this represents a true three storey house type. In fact officers are of the opinion 

that the proposed house types are not as tall as the previously approved scheme. The 

value of houses on the development is not material to the determination of this 

application.  

Increase in window number and locations – officers note that some properties have 

more openings, but again it is not considered that this would be harmful to existing 

and future residents. This is covered in the assessment available to members. With 

regards to Plot 7, it does have two upper floor windows which face towards Prospect 

House, however these can be controlled by way of condition so that there is no 

overlooking. Officers have already included a condition in the recommendation to 

members to cover this matter. There has been no breach of condition as plot 7 has 

not been constructed.  

Visual impact of the development – the proposed development is different to that 

previously approved, but it is considered by officers that the changes are modest and 

will be in keeping with the character and appearance of the site and the surrounding 

street scene, whilst safeguarding privacy and amenity of neighbouring and future 

occupiers. 

Impact of increased scale on protected trees – officers can confirm no tree survey has 

been undertaken by officers, however the Councils Tree Officer has re-measured the 

trees impacted by the proposed development and made recommendations to update 

the RPA. This has been put into a revised RPA and protective fencing plan. This 

revised plan has been reviewed by the Tree Officer and is considered acceptable. For 

clarity the proposed protective fencing is and will be retained beyond the amended 

RPA. The comments of the Tree Officer have been available prior to the planning 

committee meeting. There is no requirement for the LPA to publish consultee 

comments in such detail and officers consider that all relevant information required to 

make an informed decision has been considered by officers and is made available to 

members of planning committee.   

Accuracy of data submitted – reference is made to there being two Barnard house 

types, one a terrace the other a detached property. Drawing 005 – ‘Barnard’ is not on 

the list of plans to be approved and is not considered by officers in the assessment. 

The list of plans and house types in the committee report is very clear.  

Breaches of Conditions – any breach of condition is investigated by our enforcement 

team. Officers note that all previous enforcement enquiries have now been closed and 

there are no current open cases.   

In Officer’s opinion, the matters above do not raise any new material matters that 

would alter the recommendation to members.  

Page 91



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

6. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Tree officer comments to the late reps of Mr Harries 

DATE RECEIVED: 19 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

The Tree Officer has reviewed the comments made by Mr Harries above and has the 

following comments: 

“I don’t have my measurements to hand, although using the measurements given 

within Appendix 7, which include mine, I would suggest the calculated radius of the 

nominal RPA of T4 (ash) would be 6.6m from my calculations. 

The argument that the largest calculated nominal RPA would be applied across a 

group flows from the choice of Mr Booth to group trees at this site. I see no reason in 

this situation why a group classification would be used. I think every other attending 

arboriculturist classified each tree individually, which I would say was the best course 

of action. This choice to use the group classification then leads to the fact that BS5837 

doesn’t provide any guidance on how to calculate the RPA of a group but only a single 

tree with a single stem or a single tree, with multiple stems. My interpretation of 

BS5837 on this point is that the standard assumes the RPA for each single tree, 

whether single stemmed or multi-stemmed should be plotted, whether it is classified 

as a group or individual. 

I can see some instances where it would be expedient to classify large collections of 

trees as groups, say in large woodlands. I can see some merit in using common sense 

and choosing a statistical average of stem diameter to calculate an average RPA for 

large collections of trees where the diameter of trunk was somewhat uniform across 

the group– say in a large woodland with an obviously even-aged plantation. Where 

this were the case, I would look towards the practices undertaken in forest 

mensuration and the use of statistical averages to determine an appropriate dbh to 

apply to each tree. This, however would be an average, most probably a mean 

average taken from a representative sample. Where I came across an unusually large 

tree within an otherwise uniform group, I would classify that as an individual tree and 

calculate the specific RPA for that unusually large outlier, so not to bias the average 

of the group. 

I can see no reason why you would capture the largest diameter of an outlying tree 

size (the largest) from a group then apply it across the entire group. The decision 

would make no arboricultural sense. The basic tenant of calculating the RPA is that 

larger trees require larger rooting areas around them, therefore a larger area of 

protection of the roots are required around larger trees. To calculate the rooting needs 

of a large tree, then apply that to a small tree makes no arboricultural sense and 

doesn’t serve expedience in data collection. Far better on small sites to avoid the group 

classification altogether.” 

 

Page 92



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

PARISH: Stretton 

APPLICATION:  22/00885/RM  

CASE OFFICER: Graeme Cooper 

7. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Email from agent  

DATE RECEIVED: 14 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

An updated plan (drawing 006 Rev A) for the Canterbury House Type has been 

submitted to correct a drafting error on the site layout plan.  

OFFICER COMMENTS:  

It was noted that the site layout plan illustrated plot 2 and 3 as being the Canterbury 

House Type, however on close inspection the house type drawing was handed 

(opposite to how it should have been read) as such a correcting plan has been 

submitted. In the opinion of Officers, the main issue here may have been from views 

from upper floor rear facing windows, but both of these windows are to bedrooms so 

there is no impact from the change to the plan. As a result of this, condition 1 should 

be updated to take into account the updated house type plan. See below for the 

updated wording: 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the following approved plans inso far as they relate to scale and 
appearance: 
 

 Site Location Plan: 2016-458 005A 

 Site Survey as Existing: 2016 - 458 006A; 

 STRET 002 - House Type Bamburgh 

 STRET 003 – House Type Bamburgh (V4) 

 STRET 004 - House Type Barnard 

 STRET 005 – House Type Balmoral 

 STRET 006 Rev A - House Type Canterbury 

 STRET 007 - House Type Durham 

 STRET 008 – House Type Winchester 

 STRET 009 – House Type Hampton 

 STRET 010 - House Type Richmond 

 STRET 011 Rev A – House Type Warwick 

 STRET 012 – House Type Waterford 

 STRET 013 – House Type Garages  
 

 

Page 93



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

8. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Neighbour comments - Harries 

DATE RECEIVED: 16 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

Thanks for your response.  I am surprised you don’t have a policy or procedure for 

such important matters but your email confirms my why the applications should be 

delayed for review at a later planning meeting rather than at next week’s meeting. 

I notice today even more updated drawings have been released even though we 

now only have 1.5 working days to review prior to the meeting!  I wonder how long 

these have been in planning officers control?  How will they be reviewed prior to the 

meeting? 

It seems this will come down to your professional opinion of whether an officer has 

acted as soon as possible/practicable in publishing information.  Please consider the 

tree officer information was reviewed by the officer for the planning report that was 

issued before the information was even on the planning portal to allow 

comments.  The information was in planning officers control for at least 1 week prior 

to publishing.  Practically and feasible this was possible to publish but it didn’t 

happen?  

I appreciate your comment of requesting the committee to make a decision on 

deferral, but you must realise members of the public have to take time off work and 

miss work and personal matters to attend these meetings.  We therefore now have 

the chance of doubling this time and having to attend 2 meetings.  This can all be 

mitigated if you do the correct thing and make the right managerial decision. 

Please also confirm all the developer information is now displayed so we can review 

and submit further comments? 

OFFICER COMMENTS:  

The neighbour refers to a plan uploaded on 15th December. The submitted plan 

updated the Canterbury House type so that it corresponds with the site plan. These 

plans have no overall impact on the proposed development for the reasons outline in 

point 5 above.  

Officers are not aware of any good reason to delay determination of an application. 

 

 

 

 

Page 94



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

9. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Neighbour comments - Harries 

DATE RECEIVED: 19 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

SEE No5 ABOVE FOR FULL TEXT 

OFFICER COMMENTS:  

SEE No5 ABOVE FOR FULL OFFICER RESPONSE 

 

PARISH: Dronfield 

APPLICATION:  21/01159/FLH  

CASE OFFICER: Graeme Cooper 

10. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Neighbour email – Michael Carr & Kristina Rogers 

DATE RECEIVED: 14 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

Good morning, Mr. Maher, I hope you are well, 

Mr Maher, Councillor Diana Ruff has advised me that you are in control of 

Governance for the Planning Committee. I have forwarded this group e-mail, as a 

matter of courtesy, so that you can print and disseminate it's content in readiness for 

the attending Committee Councillors. Councillor Ruff recommended sending by 

Royal Mail but, unfortunately, strikes and the time strictures caused by Councillor 

Ruff's busy schedule have precluded this option. We have been advised that the 

best way to help with your logistical problem is for all Objectors who are looking to 

halt the progress of this application and invoke a Committee Site-Visit should forward 

all documentation by e-mail. This is in line with the Planning Department who have 

also been unable to follow their protocols of 'postal notification'. Personal delivery is 

unsafe, for we elderly objectors, so please accept our apologies and thanks. for your 

efforts, in equal measure. Please confirm that you are able to comply with our 

requests. Meanwhile we do hope that you and your family have a very satisfying 

Christmas and New Year. 

Yours faithfully, 

Michael Carr and Kristina Rogers 

**FULL ORIGINAL MESSAGE BELOW** 

We are MICHAEL CARR and KRISTINA ROGERS. 

Page 95



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

We are two of the nine formal objectors to Planning Application Reference, 

21/01159/FLH. there are more than twenty people, mainly retirees who would be 

directly affected should the Conditional Acceptance be allowed. 

We have already asked CHAIR Cllr. Diana Ruff to defer any representations until 

Jan. 23rd. 2023. Because of a lack of due diligence by the Planning Department and 

a lack of Council recommended proxy speakers who can represent non-attendees 

who want to be heard. As yet, this has not been finalised. The run-up to Christmas, 

Postal Strikes, appalling weather, hospital and Grandparental Nativity commitments 

and fear of winter's afternoon darkness is exacerbating the problems but we all 

request that our strong objections are not summarily dismissed. We strongly 

recommend that the special circumstances that your guidelines allude to are invoked 

and a Committee site-visit is arranged so that the unique circumstances of this case 

are fully realised by the Committee and that the local Community's opinions are 

acknowledged. We need to know what prompted the Case Officer's decision to 

'Conditionally Allow' this Application having previously dismissed the previous plan 

21/00774/FLH in his role as 'Case Officer'. This new application is a lot worse and 

contravenes so many regulations that we can see no justification. Planning 

Departments on-line Portal still shows 'Pending' and we cannot access the Case 

Officer's comments to provide explanations; because of this we are hamstrung and 

cannot fully prepare our representations for your perusal. 

We have tried to ascertain the relevant attending Councillors at Committee but 

nobody has been able to inform us hence this unfortunate 'scattergun' approach 

which, we hope, will help those relevant Committee councillors. We ask that you are 

all cognisant with the 'ADOPTED LOCAL PLAN POLICY H5 & POLICY LC5 OF THE 

EMERGING LOCAL PLAN 2014-2034.  Knowledge of the STATEMENT, TOWN & 

COUNTRY PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE ( 

ENGLAND ,AMENDMENT 2) ORDER 2015 AND PARAGRAPH 38 OF THE 

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK, will be referred to so pre-

knowledge is helpful if not essential. The Government Approved Document H On 

Guttering dealing specifically with specialist guttering necessary for increased flow 

and drainage makes for interesting reading and is pertinent because the Applicants 

existing eaves/guttering protrudes at least 12" over our drive and we will expect the 

roof plans to be re-presented to allow changes to be made. The new roof pitch in the 

plan increases the volume of falling water exponentially and at present it can't cope 

with any larger volume unless more guttering of a specialist design is added. It has 

not helped that the applicant has chosen a design that removes at least 20' of 

existing guttering leaving the existing property woefully inadequately prepared to 

handle safe drainage. A knowledge of the DRONFIELD NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN 

HOUSING ANDINFRASTRUCTURE P19-24 (PARTICULARLY P21/22 HOUSING 

MIX is relevant to any final decision-making process. Our representation will also 

refer to other failings in the application based on Planning Policies, The design of the 

plan, Landscape, the neighbourhood character and immediate street-scene and the 

Page 96



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

negative impact in terms of noise pollution, loss of amenity and visual intrusiveness 

to at least six neighbouring properties. 

Councillors, please accept our apologies if any of this is not relevant to yourself but 

for those in attendance this will help you empathise the depth and feeling of our 

efforts to finally overturn this application after nearly two years of 'Community 

Involvement'. You can all help by ensuring your expertise is not compromised. This 

can be done by ratifying the need for an Official site-visit by the relevant Council 

Representatives. Their official report and recommendations would then provide 

closure to both parties. 

Many thanks for your indulgence. 

OFFICER COMMENTS:  

The request to defer the meeting is not a matter officers can consider. Officers note 

that all residents that commented on the proposal were notified of the application going 

to planning committee in line with the Councils guidance.   

The differences between this scheme and that previously refused are set out in the 

report to members. Local Plan policy LC5 has been considered in the officer report to 

members. Reference to policy H5 is from the old Local Plan and is not a material 

consideration.  For clarity the Dronfield Neighbourhood Plan has also been taken into 

consideration in making a recommendation to members, however Policy HOU2 refers 

to new housing development, not domestic extensions.  

It is unclear from the comments made what case officer comments the objector is 

seeking to review, but the necessary report to members is available to view online and 

all neighbour letters were sent out in good time. Officers are not aware of any good 

reason to delay determination of an application which has been in with this Authority 

since September 2021. 

For clarity a virtual site visit will be undertaken with officers and members of planning 

committee the day prior to the committee meeting.  

Matters relating to Building Regulations are not material considerations to the 

determination of this application and are covered by separate Legislation.   

 

11. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Neighbour email – Mr & Mrs Lavender  

DATE RECEIVED: 15 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

We understand that Michael Carr and Kristina Rogers have forwarded a group-email 

to yourself and Planning Committee Councillors. We both fully agree with the synopsis 

Page 97



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

and would like to be formally associated with the attempt to persuade the Committee 

to attend a site visit before reaching any final decisions. We are both unable to attend 

the Planning Committee Meeting on Tuesday 20th December owing to frailty and 

adverse conditions which have not been catered for by the Council. We have no 

recourse to official proxy representation so ask you to present our request, in print, so 

the Councillors can understand our position in time for the meeting. Our opinions 

matter.  During my role as Neighbourhood Watch Co-ordinator, I have seen many 

attempts at improvements which have done little or nothing to improve our overall 

lifestyle. This attempt falls into the latter category 

Our main objections are as follows.. 

That the loss of amenity and irrevocable damage to the street- scene will be permanent 

.Our small community of retirees will suffer a diminution of the neighbourhood's 

essential character and the impact of the local landscape will be devastating. The 

proposed building is ugly and aesthetically bereft. Allowing a conversion, which can 

be used as a "sub-let" goes against all the council represents and strives towards. We 

would like you to attend our community neighbourhood so that you will be able to 

ascertain the levels of disruption and visual pollution before making an accurate 

assessment and taking a final decision which might prove disastrous. 

OFFICER COMMENTS:  

The above comments raises no new material considerations that are not already 

covered in the officer report to members.  

 

12. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Neighbour email – Mr Scruby 

DATE RECEIVED: 15 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

For comments and objections to planning applications that are discussed at Planning 

Meetings: 

Due to the short notice regarding the next Planning Committee meeting, and work 

commitments so near to Christmas, I am unable to attend on 20 December to 

personally address the Committee 

I believe that you are already in possession of a synopsis supplied by Michael Carr 

and Kristina Rogers, outlining the objections of the local residents to the above 

planning application. 

I would like it noted that I am in full agreement with all the comments and objections 

given in this synopsis. 

Page 98



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

Holmesdale Close is the road parallel, but below, Bents Crescent.  

The site in on a slope, and we are 2 – 3 metres below the bungalows on Bents 

Crescent.  

My specific objections to this planning application are: 

1. Front Elevation: would still 'appear over prominent' and 'appear out of character with 

the surrounding street scene', both reasons that the original application was refused  

2. Side Elevation: despite the reduction in windows in the side elevation, the proposed 

remaining windows would potentially impact on our privacy  

3. Rear Elevation: The rear windows appear the same as in the original application. 

Again, we are concerned about privacy, as the height of the proposed window will 

allow unrestricted views into our garden and patio area. 

I would be obliged if this mail could be brought to the attention of the Committee 

OFFICER COMMENTS:  

The above comments raises no new material considerations that are not already 

covered in the officer report to members.  

 

13. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Neighbour email – Mr Sumner 

DATE RECEIVED: 16 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

I have just received notification (9th November) via a neighbour that the initial scheme 

for extensions to 20 Bents Crescent have been amended. I have quickly looked at the 

amended proposals and without having further time to digest the new proposals I will 

comment initially as follows. The external appearance of the proposal is incongruous 

to the existing street scene. It will take away the architectural development concept. 

The streetscene will be compromised. When the original bungalows were built 

permission for the development was given by the LA Planning and granted based on 

a particular build concept. This was to give a visually pleasing and a particular amenity 

to the neighbouring properties and neighbourhood. It also took into account the privacy 

of the neighbouring properties so that overlooking and the loss of privacy was not an 

issue. This was particularly relevant due to the sloping nature of the original site in that 

any large windows and elevated living accommodation would have compromised the 

privacy to the neighbouring properties. Currently there are planning rules in place for 

raising the height of your garden by not more than 300mm. Yet this proposal allows 

someone to sit at an elevated position probably with an eye level of 4 metres above 

ground level. This cannot be acceptable. The question of the juliet balcony also needs 

asking because of the same reasons. The large doors can be opened and someone 

Page 99



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

can stand against the barrier and look over the gardens and living spaces of the rest 

of the neighbours. Again, this cannot be acceptable. Is the only recourse to grow large 

trees to the boundaries of this one property to maintain our privacy?? There is also a 

mistake on the submitted plans; The plan of the first floor living shows windows in the 

dormer to the living area. These are not shown on the elevations!! Are all these 

windows to be obscure glass?? A better (more cost effective and more pleasing) 

proposal to this scheme would be to reconfigure the ground floor to provide a larger 

living room and larger kitchen/dining areas. The loft could then be converted to a main 

bedroom with en-suite facilities. Dormer windows would not be needed and windows 

in keeping with the rest of the properties could be used. This would have the added 

benefit of not compromising any of the neighbouring properties privacy and amenity 

spaces. I also think that any decision should be deferred to give proper and adequate 

time for other neighbours to respond properly.  

OFFICER COMMENTS:  

Officers would point out that broadly the points raised above raise no new material 

considerations that are not already covered in the officer report to members. However 

officers would clarify that there are no planning rules in place which prevent home 

owners raising the height of a garden by 300mm. nothing would prevent someone 

from applying for permission to do such work. Officers confirm that the proposed first 

floor plans tally with the proposed elevation plans. It may be that the objector is 

reviewing “superseded” plans. 

 

14. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Neighbour email – Mrs Russell 

DATE RECEIVED: 16 December 2022 

SUMMARY: 

Commenter Type: Interested Persons Stance: Customer objects to the Planning 

Application Comment Reasons: Comment: I feel all my comments from my previous 

objection are still valid and that that the revised plans for the second storey extension 

will still cause significant issues for us regarding privacy. I do not feel building a second 

story extension is in keeping within the area which is primarily bungalows. The below 

text outlines he strong objections that we have already raised prior to the revised plans. 

The revised plans do not address any of these significant and legitimate objections, 

therefore all of our original points still stand. We strongly feel our quality of life would 

be impacted by this highly unnecessary extension (as there are many 2 storey houses 

within the area which could be purchased). We strongly object to the proposed plans 

for 20 Bents Crescent. Our objection is primarily on the grounds of privacy and reduced 

natural light. The estate is built on a steep hill and number 20 is on the road above 

ours therefore their property is on ground considerably higher than our bungalow. Our 

main living areas such as reception rooms and kitchen (including the garden) are at 

Page 100



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

the rear of the house and considerably lower than number 20's. If this bungalow 

becomes a 2-storey house the positioning of the upstairs rooms will allow a direct 

viewpoint into our amenity areas (garden, living room and kitchen). In addition to this, 

their garden backs onto our garden. Presently there is a hedge between the two back 

gardens (approximately 8 feet high) which provides privacy for both our bungalow and 

theirs in the amenity areas. The hedge will no longer be high enough to provide any 

privacy as we will be completely overlooked, however number 20 would continue to 

have their privacy. This we feel will result in us not having any privacy in the comfort 

of our own home and we will feel very conscious all the time that the people in this 

house can see into our bungalow. It would not be possible to raise the hedge any 

higher to minimise this impact. Our garden is north facing meaning that sunlight is a 

premium to us and the 2-storey extension would also impact on the amount of natural 

sunlight we receive. Reduced amounts of natural light can have a negative impact on 

physical and mental health for all concerned. The rear extension would be visually 

overbearing when viewed from our kitchen, main living areas and the whole of our 

back garden. Most of the houses in this area are bungalows, both on Holmesdale 

Close and Bents Crescent, this we believe is purposeful to minimise any overbearing 

impact caused by multiple story buildings on such a steep hill. 

OFFICER COMMENTS:  

The above comments raises no new material considerations that are not already 

covered in the officer report to members.  

 

PARISH: Shirland and Higham 

APPLICATION: 21/01376/OL 

CASE OFFICER: Phil Slater  

15. SOURCE OF COMMENTS:  Mr Kevin Bush  

DATE RECEIVED: 09.12.2022 

SUMMARY: 

The application shows no outline of how the built layout for this area of the site will be 

affected by the proposed change to the access arrangements. The original illustrative 

masterplan showed an outline positioning of the proposed housing but there is none 

explicitly shown in this application. 

However, the document entitled "Cross Sections and Long Section of New Proposed 

Road" submitted as part of this application clearly shows (in part) that an amended 

built layout has been documented. 

Page 101



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

A plan of the amended built layout should be submitted as part of this application. It is 

a fundamental result of the proposed change of access and will inevitably alter the 

character of what is the most sensitive part of the proposed development being directly 

adjacent to the conservation area. 

We should not forget that this site is not listed in the local plan as earmarked for 

development so any changes to the original grant of approval must rightly be 

thoroughly vetted to ensure there is no further detrimental impact to the community. 

I suggest that it is very difficult, if not impossible, to give proper consideration to this 

application unless this information is provided to the Planning Authority. 

I believe that the proposed new access and the resultant changes to the built layout 

are not sufficiently minor to warrant consideration under Section 73. These are major 

amendments which should form part of a new application for the entire site. 

Officer comments 

The application shows no outline of the built layout as it is an outline application dealing 

solely with changes to the means of access.  The masterplan is illustrative and details 

such as appearance, landscaping, layout and scale would be dealt with through an 

application for the approval of reserved matters.   

The document entitled "Cross Sections and Long Section of New Proposed Road" 

submitted is purely indicative the same way that the masterplan is.  The precise details 

of the road, levels and landscaping would be dealt with as part of a reserved matters 

planning application.  

A plan of the amended built layout is not required and would be dealt with as part of 

the reserved matters.   

As set out in the committee report and following legal advice officers are of the view 

that the matters can be determined under s73. 

 

16. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Mrs Diane Smith  

DATE RECEIVED: 13.12.2022 

SUMMARY: 

My main concern has always been the traffic and safety . Hallfieldgate Lane is used 

as a rat run . Our end of Hallfieldgate lane is busy with every kind of transport from 

tractors to horses and everything in between . Often traffic roars past as most residents 

cars are parked on drives which gives an open stretch to speed before encountering 

the area which has road parking. I have often seen cars mounting the pavement to 

pass . Also the junction onto A61 has limited view of on coming traffic. All these things 

Page 102



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

can only be exacerbated with this development more cars more home deliveries ect . 

How can these safety issues be addressed? 

Officer Comments 

The matters raised are addressed in the committee report.    

 

17. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Mr Kevin Bush  

DATE RECEIVED: 14.12.2022 

SUMMARY: 

It is clear from the only recently submitted levels drawing of the proposed access road 

that there will be significant engineering work required to provide a level roadbed. The 

works required include the building of a substantial retaining wall with extensive 

embanking on at least the eastern flank of the road.  

The retaining wall would be built along the eastern boundary of the site adjacent to 

number 43. This will be an ugly and overshadowing construction and will be 

significantly more industrial in its appearance than the current approved access. 

When looked at in contrast with the existing approved access which will only require 

widening with virtually no other engineering work required to provide a level surface, 

it is clear that the proposed new access is a major amendment to the approved plan 

and should therefore not be considered as a minor variation. 

Officer comments 

The engineering work including the building of a retaining wall and embankment that 

have been submitted are indicative and the details of these would be determined as 

part of a reserved matters application.   

 

18. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Mr Clive Bunting  

DATE RECEIVED: 15.12.2022 

SUMMARY 

My objections to this development are well documented. This looks more like a 

complete new proposal rather than minor changes. Access in particular looks to be in 

just about the worst possible place. 

 

 

Page 103



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

19. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Ms Helen Lynam  

DATE RECEIVED: 15.12.2022 

SUMMARY 

My objections are 

The traffic survey this application is based on is completely out of date and takes no 

account of the new estate which has built on the north side of Hallfieldgate Lane which 

has created extra traffic. 

Vehicles are often mounting the pavements in the section of parked cars along 

Hallfieldgate Lane. This area ends at the point in the road where the new junction is 

proposed. 

The newly prosed junction would be hazard to pedestrians, and cars exiting Lilac way, 

which residents already have difficulty exiting from. 

All previous objections to the original application still stand. 

 

20. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Mr Michael Manning  

DATE RECEIVED: 15.12.2022 

SUMMARY 

I believe this application constitutes more than just an amendment to the original 

planning application. 

1. It now puts the exit from the site closer to be opposite the Lilac way exit which traffic 

already has an issue exiting from. 

2. Turning right out of the site will now put the traffic straight into the narrowest part of 

Hallfieldgate Lane, where parked cars on the north side make this a single lane for 

about 150m. Cars often mount the pavement to get past each other. 

3. The footpath on the south side of Hallfieldgate Lane stops just before the proposed 

exit meaning pedestrians will be crossing the road next to the new site exit. 

4. The application was made using an old traffic survey that does not take into account 

the new housing already built in the village. 

Officer comments 

The issue of the Transport Survey has been addressed in the committee report.  The 

application is for the variation of conditions and the Planning Inspector concluded that 

Page 104



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

cumulative impact of the development on the highway network was acceptable in 

determining the planning appeal.    The Highway Authority have raised no objection.  

As set out in the committee report and following legal advice officers are of the view 

that the matters can be determined under s73 as an amendment to the original 

planning application.   

 

21. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Miss Leona Greaves  

DATE RECEIVED: 16.12.2022 

SUMMARY 

Through living on Hallfieldgate Lane my entire life, I have seen first hand the impacts 

the several new developments have made to the village over the past several years. 

These impacts are in no way positive and as time goes on, only continue to cause 

problems for the residents and visitors from surrounding areas who are travelling 

through.  

Firstly, the proposed opening for the site is a hazard. Living in the village, i am far too 

aware of how dangerous that part of the road can be. It is on a partial bend with cars 

often parked on the opposite side of the road outside their houses, meaning traffic is 

reduced to one lane only. This has been the case for a while now, however the new 

estate has access almost directly opposite the proposed access, resulting in an 

increase in traffic which can quickly build up due to the said parked cars. There are no 

pavements, causing a problem for any current or 'new' pedestrian access. What if 

these flocking to the village need to catch a bus? Do they have any safe way of doing 

so.  

The evidence you have given regarding the traffic count is outdated. It was last 

conducted in 2017. There has been additional housing to the area since then, 

therefore is invalid.  

Several other comments note the other problems such as school places, pollution and 

wildlife to the area, who will not return just because the development proposed several 

trees. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 105



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

22. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Mr Richard Whittle 

DATE RECEIVED: 16.12.2022 

SUMMARY 

My previous objections to this development remain valid. 

I wish to add however that the proposed amendment is not in any way a minor change 

and should not be considered as such. The proposal to move the site access road 

creates a number of issues which were not considered when the original proposal was 

approved upon appeal. Firstly major re-contouring of the landscape will be required to 

meet the levels of Hallfieldgate Lane. The raised levels to carry the road will require 

suitably retaining which will not be in keeping with the current surrounding landscape. 

Secondly the proposed new junction onto Hallfieldgate Lane will create further hazards 

to an already difficult road section.  

Trees lining Hallfieldgate Lane are subject to TPO's and have already been drastically 

pruned to facilitate this development, no further trimming or removal can possibly be 

considered. Visibility splays will not be achieved correctly at the new proposed location 

and a further hazard of a staggered junction with Lilac Way will be created. The traffic 

survey supporting this application is outdated and pre-dates large developments which 

have taken place since the survey was carried out. Both new developments rely on 

Hallfieldgate Lane as the feeder road and have swelled traffic movements on 

Hallfieldgate Lane to an unacceptable level. Hallfieldgate Lane is no more than a 

single lane road, due to parked vehicles which belong to terraced properties with no 

alternative parking, from the point of this proposed access for some 300 yards 

eastwards. At the exact point of entry of the proposed junction Hallfieldgate Lane has 

a right hand bend looking eastwards followed by a similar curve to the left. This "S" 

creates visibility difficulties for through traffic when negotiating the long stretch of 

single file roadway. For vehicles leaving the newly created junction, visibility will be 

even worse. On a daily basis, non reportable minor accidents are taking place in the 

form of damage to vehicles, dents, scratches and missing door mirrors as vehicles try 

to squeeze through parked cars and oncoming traffic. None of this takes into 

consideration the further increase in vehicle movements the proposed development 

itself will create. 

It is a regular occurrence that vehicles travelling westwards along Hallfieldgate Lane 

mount the kerb and drive on the public pavement at speed to avoid eastward bound 

traffic overtaking the stream of parked cars. 

NEDDC now have a clear housing development plan. In view of the requirement to 

change major parts of the application there are now new and further grounds to 

overturn all permissions granted and reject this development application in its entirety 

I would like to remind that this original application was rejected at all local levels, only 

succeeding upon national appeal. A major concern originally and contributing factor to 

Page 106



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

its refusal locally was its access and feeder road suitability. It is quite clear that this is 

still problematic for the proposed by the attempts to now change its agreed format. I 

would suggest that if the access granted with the original proposal is now found to be 

unsuitable then the whole development project should be re-evaluated and rejected in 

its entirety. 

Officer Comments  

The internal layout of the development including the site levels and retaining structures 

are detailed matters to be considered as part of a Reserved Matters application.   

Matters such as trees, visibility sightlines, traffic survey and the principle of the 

development are addressed within the committee report.   

 

23. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Mrs Nicola Mahadevan 

DATE RECEIVED: 16.12.2022 

SUMMARY 

My objections still stand from the initial application. In addition, the new proposed 

revised site access is in an even more dangerous location, having been moved close 

to the junction with Lilac Way. The original traffic survey is very out of date and traffic 

has since increased even more because of the development on the north side of 

Hallfieldgate Lane. Traffic on the A61 has also increased immensely due to large 

scale developments along the A61. This means that Hallfieldgate Lane and the 

Belper Road (note the very dangerous junction near the property previously known 

as The Shoulder of Mutton) are used as rat runs at times of high-volume traffic and 

in particular when accidents occur on the M1 and A38. 

A revised access will also mean a revised layout for residential properties and no 

longer adhering to the outline planning permission. It is likely even more 

trees/hedges will be destroyed, where DWT noted that none would be affected in the 

original plan. Have some trees already been cut down? 

 

24. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Mr Geoff Barratt 

DATE RECEIVED: 16.12.2022 

SUMMARY 

Hallfieldgate Lane is a very busy road with vehicles not only using it as a means of 

access to houses on Hallfieldgate Lane but also as a short cut from Belper Road to 

the A61. This is not helped by the fact that the centre section has become effectively 

a single track road due to parked vehicles.  

Page 107



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

To make matters worse drivers cannot see the full length of parked cars due to the 

brow of the road blocking vision. This results in drivers using the pavement to pass, 

which happens on a regular basis.  

The parked vehicles start at a point just beyond the proposed new entry/exit point from 

the proposed estate. Just across from this you also have Lilac Way with its increased 

traffic flow from the new development to the north of the Lane. 

This, in my opinion, would be a major hazard to road safety and the safety of people 

living on Hallfieldgate Lane.  

The movement of the entry point to the new development is not a small amendment, 

but a major one, to the approved outline plan and should therefore not be considered 

as a minor variation but a major alternation. 

 

25. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Mr John Shaw 

DATE RECEIVED: 18.12.2022 

SUMMARY 

I am totally opposed to the planning application for the new site exit On Hallfieldgate 

lane. I have lived on Hallfieldgate Lane for 25 years, and there has been an increase 

in traffic parked on the north side. This would mean traffic leaving the proposed exit 

heading east would have a single carriage way and there would be a restricted view 

of traffic coming from the east as the road dips considerably. 

This would cause many problems like cars mounting the kerb especially at school 

times and in the rush hour. I also agree to every other comment objections to the 

application. 

 

26. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Miss Deborah Johnson 

DATE RECEIVED: 19.12.2022 

SUMMARY 

My objection comments from before still stand. My further objections to this 

development are that more protected trees and hedgerows will be removed if the 

changes go ahead. The traffic reports were done too long ago now to still show a true 

reflection of this very busy road. This traffic report was done before the houses behind 

the houses opposite the proposed site, were built. Hallfieldgate lane Shirland is now 

much, much busier. We also get traffic on this small, narrow road when other roads 

including the motorway are closed. It is used as a rat run. The road is too narrow, with 

cars parked at the side day and night, to take the massive influx of traffic this new 

Page 108



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

development would create. Several cars have already been damaged by the vehicles 

trying to squeeze past each other. They also mount the pavement making it dangerous 

for pedestrians, especially children. This new proposed entrance is on a narrower part 

of the road near to the junction of Lilac Way. It would cause many more issues adding 

to an already dangerously busy road that children have to cross daily.  

I wholeheartedly object to these plans and this dangerous development should be 

stopped. There are already several building developments currently happening in 

Shirland. 

This development should not be allowed to proceed especially now we have a local 

plan in place with our district council. This development will put lives at risk, especially 

our children who have to walk up to the primary school or to the school bus. I have 

nearly been knocked down several times whilst walking on the pavement. We can not 

cope with any more traffic chaos. The road rage is terrible amongst the drivers. It can 

be frightening for children and other pedestrians using the pavements as they scream 

obscenities at each other. Hallfieldgate lane shirland simply cannot cope with more 

traffic. 

 

27. SOURCE OF COMMENTS: Mr David Towle 

DATE RECEIVED: 19.12.2022 

SUMMARY 

My objections and comments regarding this planning application remain and have 

increased in concern as I view the proposed amendments.  

Hallfieldgate Lane cannot cope with the increased traffic chaos that has been brought 

about by the volume of housing and development within the VILLAGE of Shirland. It 

is increasing year on year and exceeds the local plan.  

This Lane is now used as a Rat run between the A61 and the old Belper road. 

Compounded whenever the M1 or A38 is closed. Road rage is now a daily sighting 

and hearing on this Lane. Drivers shouting using foul and abusive language at other 

drivers, Cars mounting the curb and pavement on the approach to Lilac Way by 

impatient drivers waiting to pass other vehicles. Wing mirrors being taken off by traffic 

trying to squeeze through. This is a huge safety issue for our children who cannot be 

safe on the pavement. No UpToDate DATA exists which would reflect this. No survey 

will show the road rage that exists on a daily basis. The proposed variation on the 

access is outrageous, removing trees and hedgerows to move the access towards the 

Junction with Lilac Way, the amount of housing proposed within this development is 

just too much for the road network to sustain safely. The local infrastructure cannot 

sustain these developments. Dangerous and Idiotic are the only words to describe this 

Plan. 

Page 109



 Planning Committee 20.12.2022 Late Comments Report 

 

Stop this application now before it is too late or costs someone their life. 

Page 110



North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Planning Committee 
 

20 December 2022 
 
 

Planning Appeals Lodged and Determined  

 
Report of the Planning Manager – Development Management 

 
This report is public  

 
Purpose of the Report 
 

 To inform the Committee of the appeals lodged and determined. 
 
1 Report Details 
 
1.1 Appeals Lodged 
 
 The following appeals have been lodged:- 
 
 Leverton UK Ltd - Application for the demolition of builders yard buildings and 

construction of 3 new dwellings and change of use of Coach House office 
building to further dwelling (Private Drainage)(Amended Title) (Amended Plans) 
at  Harper Hill House, Harper Hill, Wingerworth (20/01285/FL) 

 
 Planning Officer – (Aspbury Planning)  susan.wraith@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk 
 
 Harworth Group - Outline application (with all matters except access reserved 

for further approval) for the erection of 397 dwellings (Major Development) 
(Development contrary to development plan) (Affecting a public footpath) 
(Amended Information)(Further Amended information) at Land South West Of 
Upperthorpe Road, Killamarsh 

 
 Planning Officer – (Adrian Kirkham)  susan.wraith@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk 
 
1.2 Enforcement Appeals Lodged 
 
 No Enforcement Appeals have been lodged.  
 
1.3 Appeals Allowed  
 
 No appeals have been allowed. 
 
 
 

Page 111

Agenda Item 9

mailto:susan.wraith@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk
mailto:susan.wraith@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk


1.4 Appeals Dismissed 
 
 No appeals have been dismissed. 

 
1.5 Appeals Withdrawn  

 
 No appeals have been withdrawn. 

 
2 Conclusions and Reasons for Recommendation  
 
2.1 N/a. 
 
3 Consultation and Equality Impact 
 
3.1 N/a. 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 N/a. 
 
5 Implications 
 
5.1 Finance and Risk Implications 
 
 N/a. 
  
5.2 Legal Implications including Data Protection 
 
 N/a. 
 
5.3 Human Resources Implications 
 
 N/a. 
 
6 Recommendations 
 
6.1 N/a. 

Page 112



7 Decision Information 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:               

No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

NEDDC:  
 

Revenue - £100,000  
Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 

District Wards Affected 
 

All 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 
 

All  

 
8 Document Information 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

 
 

 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied 
on to a material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the 
section below.  If the report is going to Cabinet you must provide copies of the 
background papers) 

 
 
 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

 
Katie Spelman 
 

 
01246 217172 

 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                               

Page 113


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Last Meeting
	4 NED/21/01376/OL - SHIRLAND
	5 NED/22/00884/RM - STRETTON
	6 NED/22/00885/RM - STRETTON
	7 NED/21/1159/FLH - DRONFIELD
	8 Late Representations - Summary Update Report - NOW PUBLISHED
	9 Planning Appeals - Lodged and Determined

